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I. ACRONYMS, ABBREVIATIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TERTS

A: Acronyms and Abbreviations

A-l-A Appropriations in Aid

APAC Asian and Pacific Countries

B2B Business to Business

B2C Business to Consumer

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CBK Central Bank of Kenya

ICPAK lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

IPSAS lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards

ITB lnternational Tourism Bourse

ITF lnternational Tennis Federation

KTB Kenya Tounsm Board

MKO Magical Kenya Open

MKTE Magical Kenya Tourism Expo

MKTS Magical Kenya Travel Specialist

NACADA National Authority for the Campaign against Alcohol and Drug Abuse

NACC National Aids Control Council

NCWPD National Council for Persons with Disabilities

NGEC National Gender & Equality Commission

NT National Treasury

OCOB Office of the Controller of Budget

OAG Office of the Auditor General

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007

OTM Outbound Travel Mart

OTT Over-the-top

PFM Public Finance Management

PPE Property Plant & Equipment

PSASB Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

PPDA Public Procurement & Disposals Act

PPADR Public Procurement & Asset Oisposals Regulation

SAGAS Semi-Autonomous Government Agencies

SC State Corporations

WTTC World Travel & Tourism Council
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B: Glossary of Terms

Fiduciary Management- Members of Management directly entrusted with the
responsibility of financial resources of the organisation

Comparative Year- Means the prior period.
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II, KTB'S INFORMATION AND MANAGEiIENT

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

KTB is a state corporation established under the Tourism Act No.28 of 2011. Prior to enactment

of the Tourism Act, KTB (then known as Kenya Tourist Board) operated under Legal Notice

No.14 of 1997. At Cabinet level, KTB is represented by the Cabinet Secretary for Ministry of

Tourism, Wildlife & Heritage, who is responsible for the general policy and strategic darection of

KTB. The Entity is domiciled in Nairobi Kenya and has a satellite office in Mombasa.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Kenya Tourism Board mandate under the Tourism Act No. 28 of 201 1 is to: -

a) Develop, implement and co-ordinate a national tourism marketing strategy,

b) Market Kenya at local, national, regional and international levels as a premier tourist

destination;

c) ldentify tourism market needs and trends and advise tourism stakeholders accordingly; and

d) Perform any other functions that are ancillary to the object and purpose for which the

Tourism Board is established.

Vbion

The preferred destination offering lnnovative, diverse and authentic experiences to the discerning

visitor.

Mission

'To inspire the world to visit Kenya through effective positioning of the destination's experiences

while enriching the lives of Kenyans and visitors alike"

Core Values

To fulfil its mandate and accomplish its vision and mission, the Board will be guided by its core

values of:

. Excellence - surpassing standards of expectation, striving to be the best in serving

internal and external stakeholders, totally committed, operating at peak potential.

. Productive partnerships - collaborating and engaging with stakeholders to achieve

Kenya tourism vision.

. lnnovation - a culture of innovation in all areas of work.

. Greativity - creativity built into every initiative that drives the customer value proposition

iii 
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OUR CUSTOMERS

Local

. Employees

o Government

. The General Public

. The Tourism Private Sector

. Suppliers

. Local & lnternational media correspondents in

Kenya

. Domestic Tourists

lnternational

. Kenya Missions Abroad

. Market Development Representativ(

(MDRs)

. The Travel Trade in various source markets

. The lnternational Media

. lnternational Suppliers

. lnternational Tourists

. Kenyans in the Diaspora

OUR SERVICES

We strive to provide our customers with:

. Destination l\rarketing Services

. Tourism Marketing lnformation Services

. Media liaison and Tourism Sector Crisis Management SeNices

. Collateral Materials/Promotional MaterialsServices

. Exhibitions, Road shows and Stand Design Services

. Destination Training Services for Source Market Travel Trade

. Product Packaging

. Product Value Added Advisory Services

. Tourism Trade Partnership Support

. General lndustry Marketing Services

OUR STRATEGIC PARTNERS

Our key strategic partners include the following:

. Kenya Ainivays(KQ)

. Kenya Wildlife Services(KWS)

. Kenya Railways Corporation (KRC)

. Kenya Tourism Federation (KTF)

. Kenya Association of Tour Operators (KATO)

. Kenya Association of Hotelkeepers& Caterers (KAHC)

o Eco Tourism Kenya (EK)

o Kenya Association of Travel Agents (KATA)

o Kenya Airports Authority (KAA)

o Kenya Civil Aviation Authority (KCAA)

o Pubs, Entertainment & Restaurants Association of Kenya (PERAK)

ivl
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KEY TANAGETIENT

The KTB's day-to-day management is under the following key organs

- Chief Executive Officer

- Executive management

FIOUCIARY MANAGEMENT

The key management personnel who held office during the year ended 30h June 2023

and show had direcl liduciary responsibility were:

1 Accounting officer/ CEO John Chirchir

2 Ag Director of Market Development Fiona Ngesa

Ag. Director of Marketing Support SeNices Betty lchan

4 Director of Finance & Administration Mary Maina

Company Secretary Allan Njoroge

6 Manager lnternal Audit Onesmus Karanja

7 Ag. Manager Human Resources Dr. Maundu Muli

I Manager Supply Chain Management Gerald Omondi

9 Strategy & Compliance Manager Dore€n Odhiambo

10 PR & Corporate Communication Manager Wausi Walya

11 ICT Manager Paul Kathambana

No Deslgnation Name

1 As CEO John Chirchir, HSC

2 Ag. Director of Marketing Development Fiona Ngesa

a Ag. Director of Marketing Support Services Betty lchan

4 Director Finance & Administration Mrs. Mary Maina

5 Company Secretary Mr. Allan Njoroge

6 Manager Supply Chain Management Mr. Gerald Omondi

7 Ag. Manager Human Resources Dr. Maundu Muli

8 Manager lnternal Audit Onesmus Karan.ia

I Strategy & Compliance Manager Doreen Odhiambo

10 PR & Corporate Communication Manager Wausi Walya

'll ICT Manager Paul Kathambana

v I i'
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FIDUCIARY OVERSIGHT ARRANGEMENTS

KTB's key fiduciary oversight arrangements are as below:

i) Board Audit & Riek Committee Activities

The Committee provides oversight of financial reporting,

internal control, compliance and governance processes.

ii)

iii)

BOARD HEADOUARTERS

Kenya Re Towers, 7th Floor,

Ragati Road, Upper Hill,

P.O Box 30630 - 00100

Nairobi, Kenya.

KTB'S CONTACTS

Telephone: (254, 2027 I 1 262

E-mail: info@ktb.go.ke

Social Media

Corporate Website: wrvw.ktb.oo.ke/
Destination website: www.maoicalkenva.com/

@MagicalKenya agicalKenya lulagicalKonya

SERVICE DELIVERY CENTRE

MOMBASA

Mombasa lnternational Airport

MOMBASA

020 2047370

risk management,

Board Finance & Establishment Committee Activlties

The committee's responsibilities including ensuring overall sound financial

reporting, internal system of controls, review of business plans and budgets,

human resources and statf affairs.

Ad hoc BOD committeo Activities

The BOD appoints ad hoc committees to carry out specific exercises. The ad hoc

committees report to the Full Board.

VI

v

vil



v t

KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30,2023

MARKET DEVELOPMENT REPRESENTATIVES

KTB'S BANKERS

Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd

Moi Avenue Branch

P.O Box 484 - 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

INDEPENOENT AUDITORS

Auditor-General

Office of the Auditor General

Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084

GOP 00100

Nairobi, Kenya.

tx

USA:

Luke Jones I Director

Advocate Travel Marketing

'1230 Rosecrans Ave. Suite 140

Manhattan Beach. CA 90266. USA

Phone: +1 (31O't 977 4751

Email lukeioneslaad vocatetravel.com

Website advocatetravel.com

INDIA:

Ms. Neeti Bhatia

Director

lntrepid Marketing & Communications

c/o Redbrick Off ices Limited

Tex Center, E-Wing, Chandivali Farm Road

Andheri East, 400072

Email: neeti(AintreDid-marketino.com

Mobile: +91 971'1901753

Website: www.intrepid-marketinq.com

EUROPE: THE PC AGENCY

Mr. Paul Charles

CEO & Founder

The PC Agency

One Heddon Street,

Mayfair, London WI B 4BD.

Mobile:+447769880991

Telephone: +442077680001

Email: oc@Dc.aoencv
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PRINCIPAL LEGAL ADVISERS

The Attornoy Genoral

State Law Office and D€partment of Justicg

Haramb€e Avenu€

P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200

NairoU, Kenya
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III. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Fra,ncls Gichaba

BA degree, PGD in Business

Managemenl.

Appointed lP Narch 2023

Mr. Francis Gichaba, born in '1964, is the Chairman of the KTB Board of

Oirectors has led an impressive career both as a marketing professional

and entrepreneur. Before founding Motion Pictures a marketing agency,

his last employment was at the National Canier where he speadeaded

an aggressive global expansion ot the airline into the Far East, Middle

East, North America's including other high potential untapped markets

within Africa.

He is adept at crealing strategic alliances with other corporate &

govemment leaders to effeclively support key business initiatives. As an

entrepreneur, he's been deeply involved in building some of the most

reputable brands in the market today cutting across different segments -
FMCG'S, Telco's, Banking, NGO'S, Govemment agencies etc rust to

name a few. He has a good understanding of how various levels of

consumers relate with brands across different categories & markets.

Francis is part of the global OnePulse team that is spread in over 60

countries across the continents. He heads the OnePulse team in Sub-

Saharan Africa. He is also the Vice Chairman of an lntemational NGO,

and has served on the boards of various industry bodies in and out of the

country. He holds a BA degree from the University of Nairobi, and a post-

graduale diploma in Business Management.

Alphina Bwatey

Bcom (BA), EMBA,

MA(Counselling Psychology,

Dip(Counselling Psychology).

Appointed 1(F March 2023

t

A-

-*l
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Ms. Alphina Bwaley, bom in 1961, Vice-Chairperson of lhe KTB Board of

Directors, is a career banker with 30+ years of accumulated experience

in all aspects of banking operations at Senior Managemenl levels at both

KCB Group and Transnational Bank. Alphina has previously served as

the Group Head of Credit Support at KCB Group and as the Head of

Credit at Transnational Bank, before switching to a career in Counselling

Psychology. Alphina currently runs a private Counselling Psychology

consullancy wilhin Nairobi.

She holds a Bachelor of Commerce in Business Administralion from the

University of Nairobi, an Execulive MBA, awarded iointly by the Eastem

and Southern African Management lnstitute and Maastricht Business

School in the Netherlands. She also holds a Master of Arls Degree in

Counselling Psychology from Daystar University and a Diploma in

Couns€lling Psychology from Amani Counselling Centre and Training

lnstitute. Alphina is a Certmed Professional Mediator and a KCPA senior

accredited Counsellor Supervisor.
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D.vE n. Tankl

Bcom(Accounts Option), MBA,

PG (MC&MrS)

Appoloted- 1e narch 2023

Mr. DaMd Tanki, born in 1972, is the founder and Chief Executive Officer

of Lan-x Africa Limited, a company lhat provides supporl to SMES and

corporate organizations to succeed lhrough strategy formulation,

business reslructuring, human capital development, financial

management and process improvement. He is also the founder and

Executive Director of The HPH Group. He has served on a number of

.boards including The Regent Group where he served as Chairman. He is

f,tso ttre trost of Business & Money TV on KTN and occupy Today onI
Hope ry/FM. He is also Chairman of the CITAM Business Forum.

I
De is a holder of a B.Com degree (Accounts Option) and a PostI-Graduate in Managerial Control and Management lnformation Systems

from Maastricht School of Management, Netherlands and Masters in

Business Administration.

Wctoi Shilakhe

BSC (Hospitality and Tourism

Management), Dip (Hotel

Management)

Awotnted 1@ March 2023

>Jlrf

t

\'r

Mr. Victor M. Shitakha, born in 19O4, is the Managing Director & Lead

Consultant of Shitakha & Shitakha Consultancy, a company he founded

in late 2021 after having had a 3o-year exciting and successful working

experience in the hospitality lndustry including working in the Eastem and

Southem Alrican countries with a small stint in Europe. Victor has been

an active Skal member since 2000 and is a Past President of Skal Kenya

Coast, leading it for 3 successful terms.

He serves as Chairman of the Kenya Coast Tourism Association KCTA

(former MCTA), the voice of tourism in the six counties of the coast and

was also appointed to the Board ot Mama Ngina Water Front to enhance

sustainable experiences at the Kenyan beachfront. He has also served

as lhe Chairman of the Mombasa County Liquor Board.

He is a holder of BSC in Hospitality and Tourism Management from Moi

University. He also holds a Diploma in Holel Management from Kenya

Utalli College.
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Jacklyne Chercp Tai

BBA (Marketing option)

Appointed 106 March 2023

Ms. Jacklyne Tai, born in 1989, is the Business Development Offlcer at

Clifton Gas Limited tasked with overseeing business groMh in the

organization both locally and internationally. She has a keen interest in

the areas of marketing, business development, managemenl, and

adminislration as well as customer care services. She is a holder of a

Business Administration (BBA) degree (marketing option) from Baraton

University.

She has previously worked with lhe National Construction Authority

(NCA) as a senior data analyst as well as the Kenya Wine Agencies

Limited (KWAL).

Jane-Anne irunyao

BCom (Marketing)

Appointed 106 lltarch 2023

-+2-, -_Y
a'

Ms. Jane-Anne Munyao, born in '1963, is a highly experienced

professional in the fields of project management, business developmenl

& marketing with over llfteen years of experience in managing projects,

leading cross-functional teams and implementing marketing strategies to

increase brand awareness and drive revenue groMh. She is also

passionate about social enterprise and community development.

Jane-Anne has held various leadership positions including

Director/Projects Manager at Carakana, Office of the First Lady Kenya,

Managing Director at Pacpro lnternational, and Manager at Robertson

Taylor (NA) New York. She is a holder of a Bachelois Degree in

Commerce (Marketing).

John Ololtuaa

B.Ed(Aris),Masters

Administration)

Principal Secr€tary

(Education

Hon. John Lekakeny Ololluaa serves as Kenya's Principal Secretary in

the State Department of Tourism within lhe Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife

and Heritage. He is in charge of Tourism Promotion, Policy formulation,

and Development of the Tourism industry in Kenya.

He is an educationist who started his education-based career in '1993.

He attained his Bachelor of Education (Arts) Degree and a Master's

Degree in Education Administration both from Kenyatta University.

He has served as County Director of Education for Bomet and Kajiado

Counties and also served as a Regional Director of Education. He has

previously served in the Transition Authority overseeing Kenya's

transition to the Oevolved System of Governance. He specitically served

as the County Transition coordinator in charge of Narok County.

Hon. John Ololluaa is a mentor of the youth where he supports several

youth development initiatives across the country. ln 2020 he participated

xil
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in Global Schools Partnership Program being implemented through the

British Council. The program is aimed at developing learning

Partnerships between schools in Africa, Asia, Lalin America and the

Caribbean.

He is a transformative leader who believes in the ideals of strategic

management and high standards of professionalism, transparency,

integrity, and accounlability.

Dr. Chtis K. Kipaoo, CBS

PhD( Finance), Msc(Ag

Economics) and Bsc (AS

Economics)

Dr. Chris Kiptoo is the Principal Secretary, National Treasury. He was

appointed Principal Secretary on 1sr December 202?. Dr. Kiptoo is the

immediate former Principal Secretary. Ministry of Environment and

Forestry. Before thal, he also served as a Principal Secretary at the Slale

Department of Trade, Ministry of lndustry, Trade & Cooperatives.

ln his working career, Dr. Kiptoo has acquired a rich wealth of experience

in economic policy analysis, mainly gained at the Central Bank of Kenya,

Capital Market Authority and lhe lnternational Monetary Fund, where he

has served in various capacities. His expertise especially relates lo the

design and implementation of monetary policy; balance of payments and

exchange ratest fiscal operations and policy; ,lnancial sector matters

including capital markets; national accounts/real sector and

macroeconomic accounting, and modelling and forecasting.

Additionally, Dr. Kiptoo has proven experience in environmenl and

climate change policies, trade policy and regional inlegration, private

sector development and advocacy, infrastruclure development,

institutional development of Govemment institutions and organisalional

management, all mainly gained at the Ministry of Environment and

Forestry, State Department of Trade as well as Trade Mark East Afric€.

Noteworthy, he also has four years of experience in economic policy

coordination gained while working at the then Oflice of the Prime

Minister.

Dr. Chris Kiptoo holds a Doctor of Philosophy Degree (Pho) in Finance

(l ntemational Macroeconomics Finance specializ ation) from The Nairobi

University, as well as a Master of Science (Ag. Economics) and Bachelor

of Science (Ag. Economics) degree from Egerton University. He is also

an Accredited Fellow in Macroeconomic Management Macroeconomic &

Financial Management lnstitute of Eastern & Southern Africa (MEFMI).
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Hr. Oavld lrwengl
(MBA), BBM.

Mr. David Mwangi, bom in '1981, holds a Master of Business and

Administration (MBA) and Bachelor of Business Management

He is the Ag. Chief Executive Officer oI the Tourism Fund and sits on the

KTB Board as an ex-officio member by virtue of S.32 (1)(d) of the

Tourism

Act.

Mr Anthony Nulgal ltudu, HSC

MIDS, BA(Economics)

Mr Anthony Muigai Muriu. born in 1966, is the Alternate to the Principal

Secretary, Nalional Treasury.

Mr. Muriu is a Direclor oI Planning and Head of lhe Central Planning and

Projecl Monitoring Unit of the Nataonal Treasury.

He is a Career Civil Servanl with over 20 years o, experienc€ having

risen through the ranks to the cunent posilion.

He holds a Bachelor of Arls in Economics from the University of Nairobi

and Maslers Degree in lnte.national Developmenl Studies from the

Graduate lnstitute of Policy Studies an Tokyo, Japan. He has also

attended numerous short training courses both locally and abroad. Ovel

the years, Mr. Muriu has worked in many Minislries and served in

numerous Commitlees and Taskforces ol the Govemment o, Kenya.

Itr. Davld KinFngl

Executive Masters (tourism &

Hospitality Management), Bcom

Mr. David Kinyangi, bom in 1968, is the Alternato to the PS, State

Department for Tourism. He is a Depuly Director of Tourism in the State

Department. He holds an Executive Masters Degree in Tourism and

Hospitality Management from lhe Moi University, School of Tourism,

Hospitality and Events Management as well as a Bachelor of Commerce

from the University of Nairobi.

xiiill'.,:,



John Chirchir, HSC

Masters (Hotel & Tourism

Management) B.Com

Ag. cEO

Appointed 17b Novemhar 2022

Mr John Chirchir, born in '1975, is Ag. Chief Executive Offlcer of Kenya

Tourism Board. He is experienced in Marketing, Brand, Communication

and Digital Strategy for tourism destinations with over 20 years of

experience in tourism ma*eting and working collaboratively with tourism

and non-lourism businesses and stakeholders.

He has also overseen the development of sales channels in Middle East

and Asia, Europe and the Americas source markets with resultant groMh

in tourism arrivals, new flight entries, increase in frequencies as well as

increase in agents selling Kenya.

He holds a B.Com degree from the University of Nairobi, a l\,lasters in

Hotel and Tourism Management from Zuyd Hogeschool Maastricht, The

Netherlands and is a Certified Digital Marketing professional by Digital

Marketing lnslilute, lreland.

Company Secretary

Hr. Allan Njoroge

Mr. Allan Njoroge, born in '1976, is the Corporation Secretary lo the KTB

Board of Directors. He holds a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) from the

University of Nairobi and a postgraduale diploma in Law from the Kenya

School of Law. He is a Certified Public Secretary, CPS (K) as well as an

Advocate of the High Court of Kenya. He is a member of the lnstitute of

Certified Secretaries Kenya and the Law Society of Kenya (LSK).

He is a govemance and legal professional and is rssponsible for

providing guidance and supporl to the Board and charged wilh

establishing and enforcing the corporate governance framework of the

Board.

KENYATOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

BOARD COMiIITTEES

During the period under review, the following Committees were in place

Board uarkoting Committee

The Board Marketing Committee is chaired by a non-executive director (Mr. Victor Shitakha) and

meet6 on quarterly basis. Other Members are Janeanne Munyao, Principal Secretary - Ministry

of Tourism & Wildlife (State Department of Tourism) and the KTB Chief Executive Officer. The

committee's responsibilities are to provide marketing strategies to the board and approve

marketing plans, activities and budgets. The committee also constitutes the technical team on

behaf of the Board in the event of extraordinary circumstances such as crisis.

xiv | 1'
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Board Finance and Establishment Committee

The Board Finance and Establishment committee is chaired by non-executive director (Mr David

M Tanki) and meets on a quarterly basis. The other members are the Chief Executive Officer -

Tourism Fund, Principal Secretary - National Treasury and the KTB Chief Executive Officer. The

committee's responsibilities including ensuring overall sound financial reporting, internal system

of controls, review of business plans and budgets, establishment and staff affairs.

Board Audit & Risk Commiftee

The Board Audit Commiftee is chaired by a non-executive director (Ms. Alphina Bwaley) and

meets on quarterly basis. Other members who are non-executive directors Janeanne Munyao,

Jacklyne Cherop Tai, Principal Secretary - National Treasury and an independent lnternal Audit

Manager (Mr. Onesmus Karania). The Committee provides oversight of financial reporting, risk

management, internal control, compliance and governance processes.

Ad Hoc Committees

The Board of Directors may appoint ad hoc committees to carry out specific assignments as and

Mren needed. The ad hoc committees report to the Full Board. ln 2022123, the appointed an Ad

Hoc Committee of the Whole Board established for purposes of undertaking the recruitment of

the Chief Executive Officer.

MANAGEMENT TEAM

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th

June 2023 and wtro had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

NAME PROFILE

Mr. John Chirchir

Ag. Chief Executive Officer

I f

-

Born in 1975, John holds a B.Com degree from the University of

Nairobi, a Masters in Hotel and Tourism Management from

Zuyd Hogeschool Maastricht, The Netherlands and is a Certified

Digital Marketing professional by Digital Marketing lnstitute,

lreland.

He is experienced in Marketing, Brand, Communication and

Digital Strategy for tourism destinations with over 20 years of

experience in tourism marketing and working @llaboratively

with tourism and non-tourism businesses and stakeholders. He

has also overseen the development of sales channels in Middle

East and Asia, Europe and the Americas source markets with

resultant growth in tourism anivals, new flight entries, increase

in frequencies as well as increase in agents selling Kenya.

As the Ag. CEO of the Board, he is responsible for operational
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NAME

Ms. Betty lchan
Ag. Director - Marketing Support
Services

Ms. Fiona Ngesa

Ag. Director of Market

Development

PROFILE

running of the Board to ensure that its mission and objectives

and agreed performance targets are achieved. The Ag. CEO is

accountable for the Board's actions, security of resources as

well as ensuring execution of the Board strategy. ln addition to

representing the management position on the Board, the Ag.

CEO chairs and supervises the Executive Committee (Exco).

Born in 1977, Betty holds a Masteas Degree in lnternational

Business from Edith Cowan University - Australia, a

Professional Postgraduate Diploma in Marketing from the

Chartered lnstitute of Marketing - United Kingdom and an

undergraduate degree in Tourism Management from the United

States lnternational University - Africa. She is a Full Member of

the Chartered lnstitute of Marketing - United Kingdom.

Betty lchan is professional marketer with more than '15 years'

experience In destination marketing. She has been responsible

for strategy development for various regions including North

America, Asia and Europe. Betty has a wealth of knowledge on

Kenya's tourism landscape and is currently a member of the

team that is spearheading the audit and award of Magical

Kenya's signature experiences.

She is currently overseeing the Directorate of Marketing Support

Services where she leads and co-ordinates the implementation

of the 360 degrees communications plan.

Born in 1980, Fiona holds a Masters degree in lnternational

Tourism & Leisure Management from Stenden University in the

Netherlands. She has a Post-Graduate Diploma an Marketing

from the Chartered lnstitute of Marketing (UK). She is a member

of the Chartered lnstitute of Marketing, Kenya Associataon of

Women in Tourism and the (John) Maxwell Leadership Certified

She has 17 years of experience & knowedge on destination

management & marketing, crisis management, sustainability,

leadership development and regional integration. She has held

various positions including Corporate Affairs Officer, Marketing

Manager - Africa and Business Development Manager.

Team
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NATE PROFILE

She is cunently overseeing the Directorate of Market

Development and is responsible for the development &

execution of the market & business development strategy to

achieve results in a sustainable & valuesdriven way.

Company SecEtary

Mr. Allan Njoroge

Mr. Allan Njoroge, born in 1976, is the Corporation Secretary to

the KTB Board of Directors. He holds a Bachelor of Laws (LLB)

ftom the University of Nairobi and a postgraduate diploma in

Law from the Kenya School of Law. He is a Certified Public

Secretary, CPS (K) as lt/ell as an Advocate of the High Court ot

Kenya. He is a member of the lnstitute of Certified Secretaries

Kenya and the Law Society of Kenya (LSK).

He is a govemance and legal prohssional and is responsible for

providing guidance and support to the Board and charged with

establishing and enforcing the corporate governance framenork

of the Board.

Mary G. Maina (Mrs)

Director Flnance and Admin

Mary Maina, bom in 1975, holds an Executive MBA from

Kenyatta University, Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting major)

1st class degree from the Catholic University of Eastern Africa.

She is a certified public Accountant (CPA), a certified

lnformation Systems auditor (CISA) and a certified lnternal

Auditor (ClA).

Mary has 23 years of experience, 6 in extemal audit and 10 in

intemal audit and 5 years in financial and accounting

experience.

She is responsible for effectively and efficiently managing all

financial and human resources of KTB in order to achieve itr

goals and ob.iectives.
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NAME PROFILE

Dr. Maundu ituli, PhD
Ag Human Resources Manager

Mr Onesmus Karanja

lntemal Audit Manager

\v/
t

Dr. Maundu Muli, born in 1976 holds a PhD, MBA in Skategic

Management and Bachelor of Arts in Economics all from

University of Nairobi. Further, he possesses a Higher National

Diploma (HND) in Human Resources Management. He is a

licensed HR Practitioner, a Full Member of lnstitute of Human

Resources Management (IHRM-Kenya) & Kenya lnstitute of

Management (KlM), Member and Peer Reviewer at Society of

Educational Research and Evaluation in Kenya; He is a licensed

Researcher at National Commission for Science, Technology

and lnnovation (NACOSTI) - 2013, 2014, 2015 & 2016, certified

Lead Expert from National EnMronment Management Authority

(NEMA) and Member & Advisor at Environment lnstitute of

Kenya. Dr. Muli is a Research Fellow at University of Nairobi

and Machakos.

With over 22 yea's of experience, Dr Muli is responsible for

spearheading the development of Human Capital and

enhancing administration of services by developing appropriate

policies, strategies and systems in line with the Board's strategic

plan and overall mandate.

Within the government of Kenya, Dr Muli was engaged as Ad -
Hoc Evaluation Task Force member of the then defuncl Local

Authorities' Performance Contract evaluation team. ln 2003,

Muli headed the Secretariat under the Task force on

transformation of KICC to State Agency among other

assignments.

Onesmus Karanja, born in 1980, holds a Masters of Commerce

postgraduate degree (Forensic Accounting) from Strathmore

University, Bachelor of Commerce degree (Accounting Option)

from the University of Nairobi. He is a certified public

Accountant (CPA), a Certified lnformation Systems Auditor

(CISA) and a Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE).

Onesmus has over 15 years of experience in the areas of Audit

Assurance, Risk Management and lnvestigations.

He is responsible for the quality and performance of internal

auditing within KTB. He provides independent and objective
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NAME PROFILE

assurance and consulting activity of KTB'S operations to the

Audit Committee and the CEO on the overall adequacy and

effectiveness of KTB'S arangements for govemance, risk

management, and intemal controls and their impact on the

operations of the organization.

Doreen Odhiambo

Strategy & Compllance Manager

?

Doreen Odhiambo, born in '1982, holds an MBA degree

from the University of Nairobi, Bachelors of Education from

Kenyatta University and a Post Graduate in Diploma

Project Management.

\Mth over 13 years of experience, Doreen coordinates the

development, monitoring, evaluation and reporting on

the corporate strategic plan, the destination marketing and

the change management strategy in the organization.

Gerald Omondi

managor Supply

anagement

Chalns

Gerald Omondi, born in December 1975, holds a Master's

Degree in Supply chain Management from JKUAT and a

professional Diploma in Purchasing and Supplies from th€

Chartered lnstitute of Purchasing Supplies UK (CIPS). He

is a member of the Kenya lnstitute of Supplies

Management (KISM) and a licensed procurement

praciitioner in Kenya.

Gerald has over 20 years of experience in Supply chain

Management. He is responsible for supply chain

management at the board.
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NATE PROFILE

Paul lGthambana

ICT Manager

Paul Kathambana, born in 1974, holds a Master's degree

in Management of lnformation Systems from Moscow

State University of Culture. He is a Certified lnformation

Systems Security Professional (CISSP), Certified

lnformation Security Manager (CISM), Certified

lnformation Systems Auditor (CISA), and Certified in Risk

and lnformation Systems Control (CRISC).

\Mth over 20 years of experience, Paul's primary mandate

revolves around harmonizing lechnological endeavors with

KTB'S strategic objectives. He is entrusted with the task

ensuring the efficiency of KTB's technological ecosystem

and also fortifying its security and resilience in a dynamic

digital landscape.
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v CHAIRiIAN'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure to present the Annual

Report and Financial Statements for the Kenya Tourism Board for

the year ended 30th June 2023.

Ovewiew

During the year under review, total international arrivals into

Kenya closed at 1,651,612, a commendable growth of 36.8%

compared to the previous year's tourist arrivals of 1,207,691. This

improved performance was also recorded in the number of

domestic bed nights which grew by 14o/o over the previous period. Tourism revenue earnings

closed at KSh. 297 Billion, also a laudable increase of 37% compared to the previous year which

saw tourism revenue of KSh. 217.38 Billion recorded.

Ihe FY2O22I23 saw most tourism destinations emerge from the devastation caused by the

COVID-19 pandemic into a post-pandemic world full of optimism and resurgence across most

destinations globally. This recovery notwithstanding, most source markets were yet to recover

fully to the pre-pandemic anival numbers and this formed the basis of recovery plans for most

tourism destinations. ln the case of Kenya, KTB took this opportunity to remind the world of

Kenya's appeal as an all-year destination offering diverse attractions, vibrant cultures and a

welcoming people.

The financial year saw tourism's contribution to Kenya's economy stand at 6.4% according to the

World Travel and Tourism Council (WTTC). With prqections showing that tourism is expected to

contribute 7.5% of the economy in 2033, the position of tourism as a key driver of the country's

economic groMh cannot be gainsaid.

Operating Environment

During the 202223 linancial year, Kenya threw its doors wde open to tourism arrivals from

across the globe and lifted all hitherto existing restrictions witnessed during the COVID-1g

pandemic period. This offered a conducive operating environment for tourism and thus allowed

resumption of large sporting events including festivals. Examples of events held in the financial

year included the annual MagicalKenya Golf Open held at Muthaiga Golf Club in March 2023, the

MagicalKenya Ladies Golf Open held at Vipingo Golf Club in Kilifi in February 2023, the World

Rally Championships held in Naivasha in June 2023, the Nairobi Stanchart Marathon held in

October 2022, the Magical Kenya Travel Expo held at Bomas in October 2022, the Rusinga

Cultural Festival held in December 2022 among many others.
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Traditional global tourism expos that had transitioned to hybrid events during the pandemic

period returned as physical events in the financial year which offered a solid foundation for the

resumption of B2B meetings and KTB took advantage of this to attend ITB 2023 in Germany as

well as OTM 2022 in lndia together with the tourism trade. Although budgets remained

constrained, l(TB continued to support exhibitions as a key tool for re-introducing Kenya to the

world and reconnecting with the tourism trade in its key source markets.

Locally, the recovery of the sector saw full reopening of hitherto closed tourism establishments

which had a positive knock-on effect on employment in the sector. With tourism contributing

7.9% of jobs in the Kenyan economy which translates to '1.5'l million jobs, this was a welcome

development for property owners and tourism sector employees, further emphasising the

importance of the tourism sector to Kenya's economic growth ambitions.

Strategy

ln the 202223 FY, KTB directed its marketing funds to aggressive campaigns across all its key

source markets speciflcally, USA, China, lndia, Africa and the domestic market. With heavy

budgets having been spent on awareness campaigns during the pandemic period, the foundation

was ripe for campaigns aimed at converting the high levels of awareness into bookings. Digital

marketing continued to be a key channel to reach global audiences cost effeciively and across

multiple source markets.

On the domestac front, the Board continued its strategic focus on the domestic market which

emerged as a high potential market during the pandemic period. The #YouDeserveAHoliday

campaign that KTB implemented in partnership with major hotel chains, tour operators, airlines

and the Kenya Wildlife SeNice was a key contributor to the recorded growth in domestic bed

nights during the financial year.

With the KTB five-year Corporate Strategic Plan 2018-2023 coming to an end in June 2023, the

Board begun the process of development of the new five-year plan to drive KTB'S strategy for the

nen strategic plan period. With a new administration having come into power in August 2022,

KTB aligned its strategic focus to the tenets espoused in the Bottom-Up Economic

Transformation Agenda (BETA) whose vision is to create a just and equitable society with decent

opportunities for all, especially the less privileged. With job creation being a key pillar of BETA,

emphasis was laid in KTB'S plans on increasing the number of tourist arrivals to 5.5 million

tourists by 2027 which will lead to more jobs and increased forex earnings for the country.

Corporate Governance

With the appointment of new board members in the financial year, the Board set out to lay a solid

foundation for board oversight through a robust and effective corporate governance framework.
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This was also entailed the review of the organization's strategies to identify key drivers of

accelerated growth that will achieve the ambitious targets set by the new administration for the

tourism sector.

The new Board undertook various on-boarding and orientation programmes in the financial year

for the purpose of understanding the organization's mandate, objectives and programmes as well

as the overarching corporate governance framework developed under the Mwongozo Code of

Governance. The Statement of Corporate Governance included in this report sets out in greater

detail the various corporate governance programmes undertaken by the Board during the

financial year.

Risk Management

The Board redoubled its emphasis on risk management as a crucial plank in all of the

organizations' processes, programmes and activities. Through the Board Audit and Risk

Committee, the Board ensured that a risk management framework was in place and that

adequate systems and processes of accountability, risk management and internal controls are in

existence and adhered to.

Future Outlook 2023/24

The new financial yeat 2023124 marks the beginning of a new strategic plan period underpinned

by ambitious economic growth targets across Government. Accordingly, KTB expects that

tourism marketing will be at the forefront and a key anchor in the rapid growth of forex earnings

and job creation.

Accordingly, the Board intends to roll out ambitious and impactful marketing campaigns aimed at

identifled key source markets that are expected to yield strong growth in arrivals with specific

emphasis on regional markets as well as China, lndia, UK and USA. The achievement of the

ambitious growth targets wll require strong linkages between KTB and all its stakeholders

including the tourism private sector and county governments. Already, the Board has mapped,

segmented and prioritized its stakeholders and rolled out focused strategies to engage them and

obtain their buy-in and support.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of my Board of Directors as well as the staff and management of KTB, I wish to thank

the Government of Kenya, our parent Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and Heritage, the various

county governments, our sister parastatals, the tourism private sector as well as our various

other key stakeholders for supporting, engaging and collaborating with KTB during the preceding

financial year. lt is our intention to nature and strengthen these linkages in the new FY2023124

with resultant positive outcomes for the sector and the country as a whole.
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Finally, as Chairman of the Board, I wish to thank my fellow directors for vigour and enthusiasm

with which they have embraced the demanding task of steering KTB into the next phase of its

growth journey and thus create great impact to the country's development. I wish also to

appreciate the Management and staff of KTB who worked selflessly during the financial year to

implement
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VI REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The global tourism sector has been on an upward growth

trajectory following the devastating impact of the COVlDl9

pandemic. Destinations have employed various marketing

strategies aimed at attracting and increasing their share of

the global tourism pie. Kenya has put in place Marketing

Strategies that are aimed at consolidating the gains and

increasing our resilience,

Some of the key strategies to suslaining the tourism

business include market and product diversification and

deliberate focus in promoting domestic tourism, destination branding, digital marketing and

enhanced partnership with our stakeholders. The continuous curation and dissemination of

enhanced inspirational destination content has also anchored the desire for travel to Kenya.

Within the review period (FY 2022123 July - June), lhe upward kajectory recorded in tourism

performance indicates that the industry is on the path to attaining the projected 2 million visitors.

Kenya welcomed 1,687,392 visitors in lhe 2022123 compared to 1,207,691 in 2021122 which is

40% growth.

. Point of Entry

During the period under review, Jomo Kenyatta lnternational Airport (JKIA) received 1,171,501

visitors into the country translating to 70% of the total arrivals. This is an increase of 30.6% 'of

visitors compared to 899,640 realized in FY2021122. Moi lntemational Airport Mombasa (MIAM)

received 120,351 passengers contributing 7oh ol the total anivals; this is an increase of 9l7o

when compared to 63,025 attained in FY2O21122.

Other Airports received 9,762 visitors which is a 1oh ol the total anivals; this is however an

increase of 33.5% when compared lo 7,312 passengers in FY2O21122. Cross-border anivals

closed at 382,778 a contribution ol 23'h lo the total anivals and an increase of 9% comparod to

237,7 1 1 FY202'l /22 results.
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. Market Shar€

ln terms of market share, the USA is the leading source market to Kenya contributing '13.9% of

the total anivals. ln the review period, USA received 23{,309 visitors translating to an increase of

28,0% when compared to 183,058 visitors in FY2021122. Uganda is second top performing

market with 177,131 visitors. This is an increase of 55.7% when compared to 113,7/0 visitors

recorded in FY2o21l2z.Tanzania is the third market with 142,109 visitors which is an increase of

49.3%% compared to arrivals of 95215 same period in FY2021122. UK is ranked at fourth

position, contributed 141,1110 visitors indicating an increase of 51.0% compared to 93,/157

arrivals in the same period in FY2020l21. lndia is 5th with 8(154 visitors representing which is an

increase of 23.8 when compared to 68,118 anivals recorded in FY2021122.

. Purpose of Entry

Most vlsitors came for leisure and holiday contributing 11,7o/o of the total anivals of 702,871

visitors. This was followed by Business and MICE contributing 25.3ch of 427,428 anivals. Visiting

Friends and Relatives (VFR) category came third contributing A,9oh ot the total anlvals with

4'19,438 visitors. Transit passengers recorded 90,426 translating to 5.4% ofthe total arrivals. The

remaining 2.81/o was contributed by Education, Medical, Religion and Sports.

Tourism Recoipts
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The tourism revenue figures for the period July - June FY2O22|23 are estimated at Kshs.

297.3Billion. This is a 31% increase when compared to Kshs.217.4 Billion recorded in the

same period in the previous financial year.

Bed nighB by Domestic visitors

The domestic tourism bed occupancy fot FY 2022123 in the July - June period are estimated to

at 4.5 million. This represents an increase of 14% compared to 3.9 million recorded the same

period in FY 2021122.

Domestic market continued to be a big pillar of the tourism sector during this period and KfB

continues to explore its opportunities to harness the potential that the market has in order to

create resilience and sustaln tourism businesses.

Pa(nerships with tourism and travel trade, airlines, tourism associations, and Non- tourism

Partners among others have proved their successful roles and contribution in marketing the

destination.

lntemational Outlook

According to UNWTO global visitor anivals reached 80% of pre-pandemic levels in the first

qua(er of 2023 (-20% compared to 2019), driven by excellent results in Europe and the Middle

East, compared to a 66% recovery in 2022. lnternational lourism surged 86% in 01 2023

compared to previous year, indicating early momentum.

The first three months saw 235 million worldwide tourists, more than double the same period in

2022. The Middle East (+15%) was the first region to recover pre-pandemic numbers in a
quarter. lntra-regional demand helped Europe achieve 90% of pre-pandemic levels in Q1 2023.

Asia and the Pacific arrivals rose lo 54o/o ot pre-pandemic levels, while Africa and the Americas

reached 85% of 2019 levels in the first three months of 2023. Southern Mediterranean Europe

(+1%) and North Africa (+4%) recovered 2019 numbers.

lnternational tourism receipts reached USD 1 trillion in 2022, up 50% from 2021 a d U% ot p.e-

pandemic levels. Pent-up demand, aviation connectivity recovery, and the recent reopening of

China and other important Asian markets and destinations should boost Northern Hemisphere

summer performance.

Nearly 70% of UNWTO Panel of Experts forecast higher performance in May-August 2023. Most

anticipate foreign tourism won't return to 2019 levels until 2024 or later. This year, tourists will

seek value and vacation closer to home due to the tough economic situations.
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As we implement our strategic plan (2018-2023), our focus in 2022123 will be on restoring the

gains reversed by the Covid-19 Pandemic period by among other strategies; conducting

marketing activities that will ensure growth of lnternational arrivals as well as maintain and

enhance the momentum in local tourism.

Conclusion

ln conclusion, let me take this opportunity to express my gratitude to all our travel tourism and

hospitality trade and other stakeholders and partners whose collaboration in various marketing

campaigns and programmes continue to be instrumental in significantly growing our tourism

numbers.

Allow me to also appreciate the KTB board directors and our parent Ministry of Tourism and

Wildlife and Heritage for providing us with support and policy guidance towards the achievement

of our Mandate.

To the KTB staff, thank you for your hard work and commitment with which you have exhibited

and contributed to better destination marketing and building the Magical Kenya and Tembea

Kenya brands. To industry players and partners, thank you for your support in our efforts to

better the economic livelihoods of Kenyans by jointly harnessing the economic potential of

tourism. Your contribution has positioned the country as one of the world's most sought-after

destinations.

Thank you and God ess you

JOHN CHIRCHIR, HSC

Ag. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I
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VII. STATETUIENT OF PERFOMANCE AGAINST PREDERTERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR

FY 2022t2023

Section 81 Subsection 2 (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the accounting

officer to include in the financial statement, a statement of the national government entity's

performance against predetermined objectives.

KTB has six strategic pillars in the current strategic plan that runs for the period 2018- 2023

The strategic pillars for the plan include:

1 . lnnovation Culture

2. Powerful Magical Kenya Brand

3. Effective Sales System

4. Effeclive Partnering with Private Sector,

5. Organizational Change

6. Establishment of Sustainable Funding

KTB develops the annual work plans for the financial year 2022123 based on the above six

pillars. Assessment of the Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a
quarterly basis. The Board achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2022123 period for its

6 strategic pillars, as indicated in the table below:

l. The Kenya Tourism Sector Performance

Kenya experienced a significant increase in international arrivals, reaching 1.65 million visitors.

This growth of 37% compared to the previous fiscal year's arrivals of 1.2 million demonstrates the

increasing appeal of Kenya as a tourist destination post pandemic period. The remarkable

increase in international arrivals had a positive impact on Kenya's tourism receipts. Kenya is

expected to rebound to Pre-Covid levels by the end of the year 2023.

ln the financial yeat 2022123, tourism receipts amounted to Kshs. 297.3 Billion, indicating a

significant growth of 370lo compared to the previous yea/s earnings of Kshs. 217.38 Billion. The

tourism revenue growth can be attributed to several factors, including increased visitor spending

on accommodation, transportation, wildlife safaris, cultural experiences, and other tourism-

related activities. Kenya is yet to fully recover to the pre-pandemic revenue levels for FY2018119

of Kshs. 304.08 Billion.

Domestic tourism also showcased growth, with bed nights recording a 14% increase in the

financial year 2022123. The number of bed nights reached 4.5 million, compared to 3.9 million in

the previous fiscal year. This growth can be attributed to various factors, including improved
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accessibility to tourist destinations within the country, increased pent up demand from both

leisure and business travel among the local population, and effective marketing campaigns

promoting domestic tourism.

The approved targets for the key performance indicators for financial yeat 2022123 were as

follows.

ln O3 of the financial year 2022123, KTB received a circular requiring alignment of lhe 2022123

Performance Conkact (PC) with high prioraty deliverables identified in line with the Bottom- up

Economic Transformational Agenda (BETA) as well as review the target for the financial year to

align to the projections. The targets across the above four (4) indicators were revised as follows:

KTB performance by the end of the financial yeat 2022123 was as follows

Performance lndicator Unit of easure Approved Target

lncrease in lnternational Arrivals Number of Arrivals 1,468,826.00

lncrease in Tourism Receapts Kshs in Billions 265

lncrease in the domestic bed

nights

Number in Millions

Brand Awareness 88

Performance lndicator Unit of Measure Vetted Target Revised Target ,or
the FY 2022123 as at

January 2023

lncrease in lnternational Arrivals Number of Arrivals 1,468,826 2,000,000

lncrease in Tourism Receipts Kshs. in Billions 265 296

lncrease Domestic Bed nights Number in Milllons 5.'l

Brand Awareness o/o 88 89

Perbrmance

lnd f
Unlt

lloaautl

Annuel Target Achlevomont

2022i23

Varlance % Achlovomont

of tho Annual

Pe ormence

lncrease in

lnternational Arrivals

No. in

Millions 200 t.oc (0 35) 82 5%

lncreased

Earnings

Tourism Kshs. (B)

296 lYt _5 100 43%

lncreased Domestic

Tourism Bed nights

No. in

Millions 4.52 (0.58) 88.6%

lncrease

Awareness

Brand Yo

89 89

0

100%
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KTB therefore met the target for the tourism earnings and the Brand awareness however missed

the target for the increase in international tourist arnvals and the domestic bed nights.

2. KTB Performance on the Corporab Sfategy

ln 2022123 KTB continued implementing the 2018-2023 strategic plan. This marked the last year

of implementation of the strategic plan that concluded in July 2023. Despite the challenges that

emerged during the financial year such as the budget cuts experienced in the second quarter of

the financial year, KTB made significant progress In realising the planned activities for the

financial year.

202223 being the final year of implementation of the 2018-2023 strategic plan KTB consolidated

the key achievements for the strategic plan p€riod. The following u/ere documented as the key

milestones / achievements for the period
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Leverage technology adoption by

the organization

1. KTB acquired and operationalized Key social media tools; this has given impetus to the digital

marketing department and dnven the organization to an increasingly global competitive

environment. The tools include the Digital Asset Management software, Delta X ,CANTO , Brand

Watch, Content aggregation tool ,Social Bakers ,Google Studio.

2. KTB established the Customer Relations Management system, which has streamlined the

customer engagement processes in the organization. The system has been linked to the \ /ebsite

as u/ell as the social media platforms to epand client outreach.

3. KTB has improved its processes using technology and innovation this includes automation of

some of the key business processes in the organization e.g. digitization of records and

documents management as well as automation of the key finance processes; KTB is now able to

transact more accurately and efficiently, providing services more conveniently

1. KTB developed a Frame\,\ork for top elperience, which guided the identification and evaluation

of 47 potential expenences in 27 counties.

2. A Collection of Forty Four (44) Magical Kenya Signature Experiences (MKSE) were unveiled

over the strategic plan period. These have contributed to the diverse portfolio of authentic

e&eriences for promotion. KTB also conducted MKSE trade education sessions on packaging

the signature experiences to support development of the eperiences.

3. KTB unveiled a new'Magical Kenya' sub brand targeting the Coast region. The coastial brand

has seven unique sub-brands of its own themed around different areas at the Coast; including

Mombasa, Malindi, Lamu, Tana River, Diani, Watamu, and Tsavo

SFA1:

lnnovation

Culture

Facilitate the development of

daverse and authentic Kenyan

elperiences and promote them to

priority markets.

rrxii I l' rr L, c



KEN'IIATOUHSN BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Leverage on digital marketing 1. KTB conducted capacity building for lndustry Members on digital content development through

the content communities program; .rcross various counties, this proMded trade with key skills on

creating digital content to promote the destination

2. KTB invested in capacity development of the staff and the Board on emerging and high impact

areas in digital marketing this included key areas such as influencer marketing, social media

monitoring and reporting as vt/ell usage of the various marketing tools that had been acquired.

The training have enhanced digital skills within the organization to engage and manage the

various digital platforms in the organization.

3. Key digital analytical tools have been acquired hence improving the effectiveness of the Digital

ma*eting department these includes amongst others: Brand Watch, Content aggregation tool,

Social Bakers Google Studio.

lmprove data sourcing, market

intelligence and analysis.

1. Data sourcing in the organization was enhanced over the period through subscription to

secondary research data by Euro monitor and forward keys; this supported marketing

intelligence and trends analysis in the organization by providing updates and reports on trends

and paftems in the key sectors within the industry.

2. KTB also benefitted through partnership with Mastecard and TRI which provided Oata

,insights and capacity building to the staff on data analysis and use of data for improved

targeting of tourism marketing campaigns

SFA2:

Po\,verful

Magicel

lncrease the level of association of

Magical Kenya Brand

1. KTB registered a significant growth in the Brand Awareness levels of the Magical Kenya Brand

over the strategic plan period. The Brand awareness levels grew from 66% in 2018119 to 87% in

2022/21 This is attributed to the various brand campaigns that u/ere conducted over the p€riod.
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The Magical Kenya's new visual and Brand ldentity was launched in 20'18. This provided an

opportunity to enhance the visibility of the brand across key international markets as well as the

domestic market. The new destination and corporate logos are cunently in use.

2. KTB conducted the digital rebrand campaign 2019 to relaunch the new identity, since then KTB

continues to develop collaterals that have been shared with both anternal and external

stakeholders over the strategy period.

3. KTB launched the Kenya lnanitosha Campaign in 2021, the domestic campaign was key in

enhancing the brand identity. The Real Deal Campaign targeted 24 Kenya Brand, Build

awareness and adoption by stakeholders.

Kenya Brand

Build strong media Partnerships

through constant engagement

1. KfB conducted Medaa Familiarization/ education tnps to epose both international and local

media to the diverse product and experience offering in the destination. KTB benefited from

immense media coverage of the destination by the various media houses that \r/ere hosted for

the familiarization trip

SFA

Effective

Sales

System

3 Build Brand Kenya affinity with

prospective visitors.

1. KTB conducted various joint digital and co-marketang campaigns with tourism and travel trade

over the period; this included amongst othersi Travel Trade Shor,vs, Joint campaigns with Online

Travel Agents such as Elpedia, Partnership with aidines such as KQ and Oatar as \i/ell as

partnership with Charter flights such as the Romanian and Bulgarian charter. The various

campaigns \ivere key in positioning the destination experiences
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Grow market share with: Tour

Operators and Online Travel

Agencies/Travel Agencies

KTB acquired the E-Leaming platform, \,r,hich enhanced online leaming for Trade; the first

Webinar on the E-Leaming platform was conducted in March 2021. Currently Over 3,000

participants have enrolled for the E-Learning program; 1'l modules have been developed for the

program and translated to various languages for access. KTB strengthened the use of \,vebinars

for trade education; over 74 llebinars were conduc{ed over the strategy period.

SFA4:

Effeclive

partnering

with private

sector

lmprove participation, omership

and marketing performance of the

Kenyan Tourism lndustry.

1. KTB developed Microsites to increase the industry engagement in marketing the destlnation ,

this included the; East Africa campaign page (rwvw.magicalkenya.corn/ea), and Magical Kenya

signature experiences page (v'/v'/w.maoi€!!glva.com/mkse) and the Tembea (

Kenyahttps://magicalkenya.com/tembeakenya/alloffers).The E{rade Newsletters developed and

shared with trade over the strategy period. KTB also developed the E hand book that was

shared with the Tourism Trade.

2. KTB enhanced engagement with non tourism stakeholders, this included campaigns with the

Equity bank and Safaricom and Mastercard. KTB also uorked with the flo\iier and the tea sector

in the farm tours; these increased the product offering in the destination.
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SFA 5:

Organization

Change &

Performance

Develop succession plans that are

cognizant of the emerging

workforce

1. KTB has experienced improved staff competence since the last competency survey conducted

in 2019, and subsequent training conducted as part of the action plan. This has contributed to

staff efficiency levels of about 80%

2. The Staff Training Needs Assessment v,/ere conducted for lhe five years and training

implemented to address the identified gaps

3. KTB registered an average staff retention rate of 960/o over the strategy period, which is

laudable.

4. Recruitments were conducted for vacant positions over the period, this included roles such as

P.A to the CEO's office, Marketing Managers, HR & Admin Manager, Strategy & Compliance

Manager

5. 33 \./ere lnterns deployed to the different departments on through the Public Service lnternship

Program (PSIPS)- Cohort l-3

SFA 6:

Establishing

Sustainable

Tourism

lncrease KTB's marketing funds. Over the period under review, KfB allocated an average of 7Oo/o lo Marketing programs
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VIII. CORPORATEGOVERNANCESTATEMENT

lntroduction

The KTB Board of Directors is responsible for the governance of the Corporation and recognizes

that corpolate governance is an essential framework for the achievement of KTB'S objectives as

well as measurement of corporate prerformance and as a critical means of ensuring that KTB is

effectively directed, controlled and held accountable

To this end, the Board has put in place measures and processes to ensure that high standards of

corporate governance are maintained at all levels of the corporatron.

The Board recognizes that for governance to be effective, it must be realized through leadership

and collaboration, with the Board at the helm leading by example and complementing the senior

management. This enables effective and efficient decision making and gives a structural aid for

the Directors to discharge their duty to promote the success of KTB while taking into account the

interest of stakeholders.

This Corporate Governance Statement provides the necessary information to enable all

stakeholders to evaluate the application of KTB'S governance and ethical obligations and to

satisty themselves that KTB has satisfied its obligations thereunder.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has a formal schedule of matters reserved for it. The directors receive

appropriate and timely information so that they can maintain full and effective control over

strategic, fl nancial, operational, compliance and governance matters.

Ultimately, the Board of Directors determines KTB'S strategic objectives, values, key policies and

procedures in accordance with best practice. lt is responsible for establishing and maintaining

the overall internal controls of financial, operational and compliance functions as well as

monitoring performance of the executive management.

The Board has delegated the authority for day-to-day management of KTB to the Chief Executive

Otficer. However, it retains overall responsibility for KTB's financial performance, compliance with

laws and regulations and monitoring of its operations.

Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Otficer, the role of management is to conduct the

day-to-day operations of KTB in a way that is consistent with the strategic plans, business plans

and budgets approved by the Board. ln this context, the Chief Executive Officer makes

recommendations to the Board with respect to matters of corporate strategy and policy.
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The Board then makes the decisions which it deems appropriate and supervises the execution of

such decisions and reviews.

ln line with its role to set and oversee the overall strategy of the organization, during the year the

Board begun the process of developing the new five-year plan to drive KTB'S strategy for the

next strategic plan period. Of key importance was the alignment of KTB'S strategies with the

Bottom-Up Economic Transformation Agenda (BETA) whose vision is to create a just and

equitable society with decent opportunities for all, especially the less privileged. This translated

into an ambitious goal of increasing the number of tourist arrivals to 5.5 million tourists by 2027.

During the year, the Board held a Strategic Plan Review Workshop with Management at the

Mercure Hotel, Nairobi on 22 d May 2023 where alignment of KTB'S strategies to BETA was

discussed.

Board Size, Composition and Appointment

The Board comprises of six (6) independent non-executive directors including the Board

Chairperson as well as three (3) other ex-officio members drawn from the central government

and a sister parastatal in addition to the KTB Chief Executive Officer.

The public sector representatives are the permanent secretaries or their designated alternates

from the National Treasury and also the parent ministry. The Chief Executive Officer of the

Tourism Fund is also a member of the Board by virtue of the fact that KTB is partly funded by the

tourism levy collected by the Tourism Fund. As required by MWONGOZO, the Board brings

together members from different professional backgrounds with diverse skills and competencies

as shown in Pie Chart 1. The representation of the respective genders on the Board is shown in

Pie Cha( 2.

During the first half of the financial year, the board did not transact business due to the appointed

members not having received Letters of Appointment from the appointing authority.

Subsequently, in March 2023 (Ouarter 3 of the financial yeao, the appointment of the said board

members was revoked and a new Chairperson and independent directors appointed and issued

with Letters of Appointment.
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Pie Chart 1: Board Competencies

Board Competencies

Pie Chart 2: Board gender representation

Gender Representation
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The position of the Chief Executive Officer is filled through public advertisement and competitive

recruitment. The appointment is done by the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and

Heritage in consultation with the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is an ex-officio member of

the Board but has no voting right at any meeting of the Board. During the financial year, the non-

renewable term of the Chief Executive Officer expired in the month of November 2022. An acting

Chief Executive Officer was appointed for a period of six months which was subsequently

renewed in May 2023 for a further six months.

The Board Chairman is appointed by the President. The Chairman was appointed by H.E the

President w.e.f 10ih March 2023 vide Gazette Notice No. 2862 of 6rh March 2023. The

independent directors are appointed by the Cabinet Secretiary in the Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife
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and Heritage. These comprise of five members, not being public servants, appointed by the

Cabinet Secretary taking into account regional balance and gender parity, of whom two are

nominated by the registered national tourism associations and three are persons with knowledge

or experience in matters relating to international tourism, finance, business administration, law,

marketing or a related discipline. Five (5) independent directors were appointed by Cabinet

Secretary in the Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and Heritage w.e.f 1Oth March 2023 vide Gazette

Notice No. 2886 of 6ii March 2023

The directors' abridged biographies appear on pages lx to XIV of this Annual Report.

The Board committee membershap is shown on page XIV to XV.

lndopendence, Soparation of Roles and Responsibilities

All Directors except the Chief Executive Otficer are non-executive. The non-executive directors

are independent of Management, they establish a framework for the delegation of authority and

ensure succession planning for the Chief Executive Officer and senior management is in place.

Their role is to advise, constructively challenge and monitor the implementation of the agreed

corporate strategy within the risk appetite and control framework that is set out by the Board.

The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer and non-

executive directors remain distinct and separate which ensures a balance of power of authority

and provides for checks and balances such that no one individual has unfettered powers of

decision making. Their roles have been documented and are expected to be independent and

free from conflict upon appointment.

The Chairman provides overall leadership to the Eoard without limiting the principles of collective

responsibility for Board's decisions. The Chairman builds an effective board and sets the board

agenda in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and ensures effective communication to

stakeholders.

On the other hand, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible to the Board and takes the overall

responsibility for the management of organization and takes responsibility for the etfeciive and

efficient day to day running of the affairs of the organization. The Chief Executive Officer

recommends the strategy to the Board and implements it and makes operational decisions. The

Chief Executive Officer also ensures appropriate and timely information flows within the Board,

its committees and management.

Oversight Role of the Board

The Board provides strategic direction with a focus on consistent business performance in an

atmosphere of transparency and accountability whilst also reviewing and monitoring proper

corporate governance throughout the organizatlon.
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The responsibilities of the Board are clearly spelt out in the Tourism Act No. 28 of 20'l 1,

MWONGOZO Code of Governance and the Board Charter. The Board defines the purpose ofthe

organization, its strategic intent, ob.lectives and its values. lt ensures that procedures and

practices are in place to protect KTB'S assets and reputation.

The Board retains full and effective control over KTB and monitors Management's

implementation of the plans and strategies set by the Board. lt ensures ethical behaviour and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations, audit and accounting principles, corporate

policies and procedures and the Code of Ethics. lt strives to act above and beyond the minimum

requirements and benchmalk performance against best international practices.

The Darectors Code of Conduct and Ethics defines the governance parameters within which the

Board exists and operates. ln accordance with the principles of good corporate governance,

each director undertakes to always act in the best interest of KTB and exercise his/her power in

the execution of duties in good faith and acts with care and prudence. Upon appointment, each

director signs the Directors Code of Conduct and Ethics.

Board Meetings

The Board of Directors normally meets at least once every qua(er and is chaired by a non-

executive Chairman. The Board, including the Board Committees, holds regular scheduled

meetings throughout the year and special meetings are held as and when necessary. ln case of

non-attendance due to other commitments. such information is communicated to the

Board/Committee chair, through the Corporation Secretary, pnor to the date of the scheduled

meeting. A summary of Full Board meetings attendance by the Board of Directors is shown

below.

xli I



KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATE]UENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Boatd Meeting Aftendance from 1st July 2022 to 3Ah June 2023'

' Boad did not hold meotings from ld July 2022 to 5k Apil 2023

Boad
ilember Positlon

6tn

2023

Aprll

18s ay 2023 29u June 2023

Francis

Gichaba Chairman

John Chirchir Ag. Chief Executive Officer

Alphina

Bwaley Vice-Chairman

DaMd Tanki lndependent Director

Viclor

Shitakha

lndependent Director

Janeanne

Munyao

lndependent Director

Jacklyne

Cherop lndependent Director

PS, Tourism

Ex Officio

Alternate is David Kinyangi

PS, National

Treasury

Ex Officio

Alternate is Anthony Muriu

CEO, Tourism

Fund
Ex Otficio

lnspectorate of

State

Corporations
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Board Committees and Responsibilities

The Board delegates certain functions to well-structured committees but without aMicating its

own responsibilities. The Board has developed a committee structure that assists in the

execution of its duties, powers and authorities.

The Committees are appropriately constituted drawing membership from amongst the Board

members with appropriate skills and experience. Each Committee is guided by the individual

Committee Charter/Terms of Reference, which outlines its responsibilities as mandated by the

Board.

The Committees are expected to operate transparently, ensure full disclosure to the Board and

conduct themselves within the rules and procedures set out by the Board. Matters deliberated on

by the Committees are presented to the Board by the respective chairmen during the nexl Board

meeting. Ad Hoc Committees are also constituted by the Board on a need basis as and when

required. During the year, the Board constituted an ad-hoc committee of the whole board for

purposes of conducting recruitment for the position of Chief Executive Officer.

As per the directives from the Head of the Public Service vide circular (OP/CAB.9/1A) of 11h

March 2020 on Management of State Corporations, the number of members to any board

committee was limited to no more than one{hard of the full board. The number of commlttees that

any member can sit was also Iimited to two. Annual rotation of the commiltee memberships will

be implemented as provided for in the circular.

Board Mark€ting Committee

The Board of Directors has delegated to the Board Marketing Committee the authority to

undertake the following functrons:

'l . Provide input from the private sector to KTB'S marketing strategies and plans

2. Undertake proactive crisis management on behalf of the Board and constitute the technical

team in the event of a crisis.

3. Provide strategic direction for KTB'S marketing policies

4. Deliberate on cross-cutting issues that impact on tourism development and growth in co-

operation with Government and other institutions.

5. Provide input in the selection and recruitment of senior staff within the marketing department

by reviewing job specifications

6. Engage with strategic partners such as KWS, KQ, KTF among others

7. Any other matters assigned to the Committee by the Full Board.
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A summary of Board Marketing Committee meetings attendance by the committee members is

shown below.

Board Marketing Commiftee Meeting Attendance from 1s July 2022 to 3dh June 2023'

' tuard did not hold me,tings trorn ld July 2022 to April 2023

Board Finance & Establishment Committee

The Board of Directors has delegated to the Board Finance & Establishment Committee the

authority to undertake the following functions:

'1. To deliberate on all financial matters presented by management and make recommendations

to the Full Board, including reviewing of the KTB budgets and annual financial statements,

among others

2. To deliberate on all matters relating to human resources including staff emoluments and

benefits, organizational structufe, recruitment, appraisals and termination, among others

3. To deliberate on legal matters affecting the organisation and to receive updates on legal

issues that the organisation may be pa(y to.

4. To deliberate on procurement matters including receiving of procurement reports

5. To deliberate on Performance Contracting matters including reviewing of the draft annual

performance contract and receiving quarterly PC reports.

6. To deliberate on the Corporate Skategic Plan including receiving of quarterly strategic plan

implementation reports

7. To deliberate on any other matters that may be delegated to the Committee by the Full Board

Comlnlttoc

rrcrnber Pocltlon 28ti Apdl 2023 146 June 2023

Victor Shitakha Chairman

John Chirchir
Ag. Chief Executive Offlcer

Janeanne Munyao Director

PS, Tourism Alternate is David Kinyangi

David Tanki' 'By lnvitation N/A

lnspectorate of

State Corporations
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A summary of Board Finance & Establishment Committee meetings attendance by the

committee members is shown below.

Board Finance & Establishment Committee Meeting Aftendance from 1s July 2022 to 30 June

2023

' Board did not hold meetings from 1 July 2022 to April 2023

Board Audit & RiBk Committee

The Board of Directors has delegated to the Board Audit & Risk Committee the authority to

undertake the following functions:

1. Assist the Chief Executive Officer in enhancing internal controls in order to improve

efficiency, transparency and accountability

2. Review audit issues raised by both internal and external auditors

3. Resolve unsettled and unimplemented relevant Parliamentary Committees

recommendations.

4. Enhance communication between management, internal and exlernal auditors and foster an

effective internal audit function

5. Establish and maintain an effective Board risk management process.

A summary of Board Audit & Risk Committee meetings attendance by the committee members is

shown below.

Commlttoe

f,.mber Pooldon 46 ey 2023 lsF Juno 2023

David Tanki Chairman

John Chirchir
Ag. Chief Executive Officer

cEo,
Tourism Fund

PS National

Treasury Alternate is Anthony Muriu

lnspectorate

of State

Corporations
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Boad Audit & Risk Committee Meeting Attendance from 1s July 2022 to 3d June 2023

' Board did not hold meetings from 1 July 2022 to Apd 2023

Board Ad Hoc Commlttee on CEO Recrultment

The Board of Directors at its 62nd Special Full Board meeting resolved that an Ad Hoc Committee

of the Whole Board be established for purposes of undertaking the recruitmenl of the Chief

Executive Officer. The Committee was chaired by the Chair of the Board Finance and

Establishment Committee and also co-opted, with the approval of SCAC, a HR expert from the

Public Service Commission (PSC).

Board Ad Hoc Committee Meetings Attendance frcm 1st July 2022 to 3Uh June 2023-

Poeluon 66 lley 20Zl

I

I

c*ttn* ternb.r
ChairpersonAlphina Bwaley

Janeanne Munyao

Directol

Jacklyne Cherop Director

PS, National Treasury Alternate is Anthony Muriu

lnspectorate of State

Corporations

Board

Mrmber Position

12n

Aprll

2023

180'

t[ay

2023

29!'

f,lay

202t

30h

lray

2023

7r June

2023

gf'

June

2023

2gr'

June

2023

David Tanki

Commiftee

Chairman

Francis

Gichaba

Board Chairman

Alphina

Bwaley Vice-Chairman

Victor

Shitakha lndependent

Director
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Board

Member Position

12t

April

2023

1g!,

May

2023

2gr'

May

2023

30h

May

2023

7r' June

2023

80r

June

2023

290'

June

2023

Janeanne

Munyao lndependent

Director

Jacklyne

Cherop

lndependent

Director

PS, Tourism

Ex Officio

Alternate is

David Kinyangi

PS, National

Treasury

Ex Officio

Alternate is

Anthony Muriu

cEo,

Tourism

Fund

Ex Officio

Gilbert

Nyandiga

Co-opted

Member N/A

lnspectorate

of State

Corporations
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Remuneration of the Board

The non-executive directors are paid a taxable sitting allowance as approved by the State

Corporations Advisory Committee. The Chairman is paid a monthly honorarium al a rate

approved by the Government as well as a monthly airtime and internet allowance.

Transport expenses incurred by directors in respect of travel for Board business are reimbursed

at the prevailing AA rates. The independent directors are also entitled to outpatient and inpatient

medical cover and a personal accident cover as approved by the Government as well as a

monthly internet allowance to facilitate use of the electronic board meetings solution.

Director3 lnduction and Training

The Board develops an induction program designed to introduce new directors to the operations

of the Board and also organizes corporate governance trainings at different times during the
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year. The programs are aimed at deepening the boards' understanding of the changes in risks,

laws and business and political environment in which the Board operates.

During the year, the newly appointed board members were taken through a two-day induction

programme by Management at Great Rift Valley Lodge, Naivasha on 13h and 14th April 2023. ln

addition, the members attended a Mwongozo Induction Workshop organized by the State

Corporations Advisory Committee (SCAC) at the Lake Naivasha Resort on 24ih to 26rh April 2023.

Board Effectivenesa and Evaluation

ln order to assess and improve the €pacity, functionality and effectiveness of the Board and its

Committees, an annual evaluation is normally scheduled in accordance with the widely accepted

principles of corporate governance. The self-evaluation is intended to review the capacity,

functionality and effectiveness of its performance in the achievement of its goals and objectives.

It assesses the performance and independence of the Board and its Committees jointly and

individual memb€rs of the Board, including the Chief Executive Officer.

Meetings of the Board continued to be managed effectively and efficiently through the use of a

100% paperless electronic board management solution.

Code of Conduct and Ethics

The directors and employees of the Board have a fiduciary duty to act honestly and in the best

interest of the Board. Business transactions with all parties must be carried out at arm's length

and with integrity. The Board provides etfective leadership based on an ethical foundation and

ensures all deliberations, decisions and actions are based on the Boards' core values

underpinning good governance.

The Board has in place a Code of Conduct and Ethics whose aim is to define the Board's

commitment to the highest standards of behaviour and to build respect, confidence and credibility

with its stakeholders. The Code provides guidance to its members regarding ethical and

behavioural considerations as they address their duties and obligations during their appointment

and their term in KTB. The Board has also put in place a corruption prevention framework to

ensure the highest standards of ethlcal behaviour are maintained.

Accountability & Audit

The Board is required to present an objective and understandable assessment of the

organizations' operational position and prospects. To this end, the Board ensured that accounts

were presented in accordance with the lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

(TPSAS).
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(i) External Auditors

Kenya Tourism Board accounts are audited by the Otfice of the Auditor-General. The Office of

the Auditor-General is an independent office whose role and responsibilities are deflned under

the Constitution of Kenya.

(ii) lntornal Auditors

The Board in furtherance of its duties to ensure that the process, structure and internal controls

are maintained and adhered to has recruited qualified and experienced in-house internal audit

staff to carry out such functions and present reports on compliance.

lntemal Controls and Risk itanagement

The Board has the responsibility of identifying internal risk exposures and developing measures

to mitigate against the identified risks. The Board reviews and monitors the development and

implementation of systems of internal controls. The Board ensures that it has gained an

understanding of these risks and mitigates them by implementing sound internal controls and risk

management practices.

Consequently, the Board has in place a Risk Management Framework which identifies the risks

and prescribes measures for the management of the identified risks. The Board recognizes that

information technology forms an integral part of the risk management process and has

developed a business continuity plan and disaster preparedness plan among other ICT policies.

The Board has delegated the day to day management of rasks to Management through systems

and processes carried out on a day to day basis.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Board appreciates that stakeholder perception atfects the organization's reputation.

Therefore, the Board strives to achieve an appropriate balance between its various stakeholders

in the best interest of the organization by taking into account their legitimate interests and

expectations in decision making.

The Board values the importance of complete, timely, transparent and effective communication

with its stakeholders for bullding and maintaining their trust and confidence by providing regular

information on its performance, activities and addressing their concerns whilst having regard to

legal and skategic considerations.

The main avenues through which the board communicates Wth stakeholders are through press

statements, stakeholder forums, courtesy calls as well as annual reports and financial

statements. During the year, the Board held Stakeholder engagement forums with the Kenya

xlix I



KENYA TOURIS'T BOARD
ANM,AL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Tourism Federation constituent associations at Mercure Hotel, Nairobi on 22nd May 2023 as well

as a Stakeholder engagement with Coast tourism stakeholders on 2'ld June 2023.

The Board has continued to encourage electronic communication through publishing documents

on the corporate website www.ktb.oo.ke and on the destination website www.maoicalkenva.com

and has endeavoured to ensure that the two u€bsites are highly interactive and contain all the

relevant information that stakeholders may require. ln addition, KTB also regularly publishes an

electronic newsletter for purposes of communicating with its stakeholders.

lll'.r-.



KENYA TOURIS'T BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATETENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENOED JUNE 30,2023

IX. MANAGEiIENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SECTION A. KTB'S OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

OvorYiew

e) Total A'rivalg

There was a remarkable growth in international arrivals during the financial yeat 2022123. Wilh

1.65 million visitors, this was a significant 37% increase compared to the previous fiscal yea/s

anivals of 1.2 million, indicating a positive upward trend. This can be attributed to the pent-up

demand for travel, easing of travel restrictions in 2022 and an increase in travelers' confidence,

especially from the European region.
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Polnt of Entry

ln the financial yeat 2022123, the point of entry performance r,vas as follows
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,Uarkel Share

ln the financial yeat 2022123, the top five source markets for Kenya's tourism sector

demonstrated notable performance.

The United States emerged as the leading source market, with a market share of 13.9% and a

total of 234,309 arrivals. This represented a significant 28% growth compared to the previous

fiscal year's arrivals of 183,258, showcasing a strong recovery of 99.7% when compared to the

pre.pandemic year of FY2018/19, which saw 234,955 arrivals.

Uganda held the second-largest market share at '10.5%, with 177,131 arrivals. This marked an

impressive 56% growth compared to the previous fiscal year's arrivals of '113,740, demonstrating

a recovery of 86% when compared to FY2018119's 207,523 arrivals.

Tanzania accounted tor an 8.4o/o market share, with 142,109 arrivals. The country experienced a

robust growth of 49.3o/o compared to the previous fiscal year's arrivals of 95,215, indicating a

significant rxovery ol 72o/o when compared to FY2018/19's 197,663 arrivals.

The United Kingdom also showcased strong performance, with an 8.4o/o markel share and

141,140 arrivals. This represented a notable 51% growth compared to the previous flscal year's

arrivals of 93,457 and a recovery of 77o/o when compared to FY20'18/19's 183,589 arrivals.

lndia accounted lor a 5o/o market share, with 84,354 arrivals. This reflected a 24o/o gtov'tlh

compared to the previous fiscal year's arrivals of 68,118, signifying a recovery of 70% when

compared to FY2018/19's 120,625 anivals.

The performance of these top source markets indicates significant groMh and strong recovery

across the board. These positive trends signify Kenya's enduring appeal as a destination and the

effectiveness of marketing etforts targeting these key markets.
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ITALY 16,968 52,806 61,085 52,806

Purpose of Entry

The purpose of entry into Kenya varied across different categories, as evidenced by the following

data:

The largest share of arrivals was for holiday purposes, with a total o1702,871 arrivals throughout

the financial year. Holiday arrivals accounted for 41 .7o/o of the total.

Visiting Friends and Relatives (VFR) was the second-largest category, with 419,438 arrivals,

making up 24.9% of the total.

The Business & MICE (Meetings, lncentives, Conferences, and Exhibitions) category accounted

for 25.3o/o of arrivals, with a total of 427,728 visitors.

ln Transit arrivals accounted lor 5.4o/o of the total, indicating Kenya's position as a transit hub for

travelers connecting to other destinations.

Education-related arrivals accounted lor 1 .1o/o, with 18,687 visitors coming to Kenya for

educational purposes. Medical tourism constituted 0.7% of the total, with 1 1,094 anavals seeking

medical treatments or procedures. Religion and Sports-related arrivals had smaller shares, at

O.7o/o and 0.3% respectively, demonstrating niche interests attracting visitors to Kenya.
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Purpose of Entry Ju y rune
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b). Tourism Recelpts

ln the financial yeat 2022123, Kenya's tourism sector recorded total tourism earnings of Ksh.

297.3 Billion. This represents a substantial growth of 37% compared to the previous fiscal

year's earnlngs of Ksh. 217.38 Billion. This growth is indicative of the secto/s resilience and

recovery from the challenges posed by the global pandemic and economic uncertainty.

Kenya is yet to fully recover to the pre-pandemic year of FY2018/19, where tourism eamings

amounted to Ksh. 304.08 Billion.

It is important to note that despite the reduction compared to FY20'18/19, the tourism sector's

overall growth in the financial yeat 2022123 demonstrates a positive trajectory and recovery

from the previous year's challenges. The significant groMh compared to FY2021122 indicates

the secto/s resilience and the successful efforts made by Kenya to attract visitors and

promote tourism activities.

These tourism earnings reflect the economic impact of the sector, including revenue

generated from accommodation, transportation, attractions, and other tourism-related

activities. They also highlight the importance of the tourism sector as a vital contributor to

Kenya's overall economy, providing employment opportunities and driving economic growth.
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Rcccipts: Xshs Billion
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c). Bed nlghtr by Domostlc Tourlsts

ln the financial year 20222q domestic bed nights in Kenya recorded a total of 4.52 million. This

represents a notable growth of 14o/o ?,ompared to the ffevious fiscal yeais bed nights of 3.95

million. The increase in domestic b€d nights signifies the growing inter$t among Kenyan

residents to explore and exp€rience their own country's tourism offerings. Compared to the pre-

pandemic year of FY2018/19, where domestic bed nighE reached 4.68 million, Kenya is at 97%

recovery to the Pre CoMd-levels.

The growth in domestic bed nights is beneficial for the tourism sector as it contributes to the

sustainability and resilience of the industry. Domestic travelers contribute to local economiB by

spending on accommodations, food and beverage seMces, transportation, and other tourism-

related adivities.
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d) Financialperformance

KTB received Kshs 306.99 Million from GoK grants; Kshs 3ooMillion from Tourism Fund,

Ksh.g.4M from UNESCO and earned Kshs 149.49 Million from Appropriation in Aid in FY

2022123. KTB accrued Government grants of KShs 19.832M. This amount relates to the

recunent funds that had not been received at year end. These amounts were received

subsequent to year end on Srh July 2023.

5 YEAR REVENUE SUMMARY
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SECTION B. REVIEW OF THE ECONOMY, TOURISM SECTOR & FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

I. REVIEW OF THE ECONOMY

With a GDP growth at 4.8o/o in 2022, Kenya's economic performance softened after the strong

rebound from the COVID-19 crisis at 7.5% in 2021. The groMh momentum was driven by the

service sector, rr/hich contributed about 80% of the increase in total GDP. Financial services.

tourism, and transport sectors performed especially strongly. The adverse weather shock of the

last two years has been a major drag on economic growth. The impacts of tightening of domestic

macroeconomic policies and challenging global financial conditions significantly affected

domestic economic activity, especially in the latter half of the year. The economy is expected to

rebound and expand by 5.5o/o in 2023 supported by broad-based private sector growth, including

continued strong performance of the services sector, remveries in Agriculture and ongoing public

sector investments.

Like many countries across the world, Kenya faced inflationary pressures amid commodity price

volatility, tightening global financing conditions that put major pressure on the exchange rale and

foreign exchange reserves, further aggravated by the worst drought in four decades, significantly

increasing food insecurity and affecting millions of livelihoods. Kenya's economy is projected to

grow by 5.5% in 2023 and above 6.0% over the medium term. This groMh will be reinforced by

the Government's Bottom-Up Economic Transformation Agenda geared towards economic

turnaround and inclusive groMh.

According to UNWTO Panel of Expe(s, the challenging economic environment will continue to

be the main factor weighing on the etfective re@very of international tourism in 2023, with high

inflation and rising oil prices translating into higher transport and accommodations costs. The

IMF's latest World Economic Outlook (April 2023) indicates that global economic growth could

fall from 3.4o/o in 2022 to 2.8o/o in 2023. Against this backdrop, tourists are expected to

increasingly seek value for money and lravel closer to home in response to elevated prices and

the overall economic challenges.

The latest IMF forecast shows that Global growth is estimated to slow from 3.2% in 2022 to 2.7o/o

in 2023. Emerging Market and Developang Economies growth is projected at 3.7%, Advanced

Economies growth is pro.iected at l%, Euro Area growth is pro.iected to come in at 0.5%, China's

economy is forecast to grow 4.4yo and Emerging Market gro\,vth is forecast at 2.9% in 2023 wtrile

Sub-Saharan Africa (SSA) growth is proJected lobe3.7%.
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2. REVIEWOF THE TOURISM SECTOR

According to WfiC, the tourism industry in Kenya has shown a fluctuating trend in its

contribution to the economy since the onset of the Covid 19 pandemic. ln 2019, tourism

accounted for 7.8% of the country's economy, equivalent to Ksh.92'1.8 Billion. However, in 2022,

there was a decline to 6.4%, amounting to Ksh.8& billion, which represents a decrease of 6.2%

compared to 2019. WTrC forecasts there will be a notable recovery in 2023, with tourism

contributing 6.7% to the economy, equivalent to Ksh.938.8 Billion. This indicates an 8.6%

increase compared lo 2021 and a growth of 1.8% compared to 2019. Looking ahead, the study

projects that by 2033, tourism's contribution will reach 7.5% of the economy, amounting to an

impressive Ksh.1.6 Trillion. This demonstrates a compound annual groMh rate (CAGR) of 5.2%

from 2023 to 2033.

ln 2019, tourism contributed to 8.6% of employment in the country, providing job opportunities for

approximately 1.56 million people. Although there was a slight decline in 2022, with tourism

employment accounting for 7 .9o/o 0|1.51 million jobs, there was still an 1 1.4% increase

compared to 2021. However, this figure represented a decrease of 3.4% compared to 2019.

Looking ahead, the forecast lot 2023 indicates a positive trajectory, with tourism employment

expected to reach 8.6% or around 1.59 million jobs. This forecast represents a 5.8% increase

compared to 2021 and a 2.2o/o gtortl/.h compared to 2019. The report also projects notable future

growth for the sector, with the forecast for 2033 indicating a tourism employment contribution of

8.7%, equivalent to approximately 2.24 million jobs. This represents an increase of 0.7 million

jobs compared to 2023.These findings in the study by WTTC also highlight the crucial role of the

tourism industry in Kenya as a major employer, contributing to both job creation and economic

development. The projected growth indicates the potential for further employment opportunities

in the sector, reinforcing its importance for the country's workforce.

3. TOURISM FUTURE DEVELOPMENTAND OUTLOOK

According to the UNWTO Barometer released in May, most experts continue to believe

international tourism will not return to 20'19 levels unll 2024 (38%) or 2025 or later (23%), some

28% of respondents expect the recovery lo occur in 2023. The UNWTO forward-looking

scenarios for 2023, projected international arrivals to recover 80% to 95% of pre pandemic levels

by the end of 2023. The challenging economic environment continues to be the main factor

weighing on the effective recovery of international tourism in 2023, with high inflation and rising

oil prices translating into higher transport and accommodations costs

The Middle East saw the strongest performance, with arrivals exceeding by 15% the number

recorded in the first quarter of 2019. As a result, the Middle East is the first world region to

recover pro-pandemic numbers in a full quarter. Europe, the world's largest destination region,
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reached 90% of pre-pandemic levels in Q1 2023, supported by robust intra-regional demand.

Africa recovered 88% of its pre-pandemic arrivals in the first three months of 2023 and the

Americas about 85%. Kenya currently stands at 83% recovery having achieved '1.65 Million

international arrivals against the 2.02M international arrivals in 201812019

According to WTTC's report "A World in Motion: Shifting Consumer Travel Trends" tourism will

remain resilient even in the midst of economic uncertainty, a significant 41% of travellers on

average said they intended to spend more in 2023 than in 2022. ln particular, they plan to spend

31% more on international travel. Overall tourism industry in Kenya has shown resilience and is

projected to make significant strides in the future, contributing substantially to the country's

economy.

4. STR,ATEGY 202223

The Kenya Tourism Board (KTB) is currently implementing the 2018-2023 strategic plan. The

plan concluded in June 2023 and so KTB embarked on the development of the strategic plan for

the period 2023-2028. Key lessons emerged from end term reflection of the strategy, the lessons

have subsequently been integrated into the development ol the 2023-2028 strategic plan. The

lessons included amongst others:

i. Strong partnerships with industry and strategic partners are key in the delivery of the

strategic plan objectives. An effective framework for measuring results from partnership

with trade remains a key requirement

ii. Funding for destination marketing in Kenya has been inadequate and sometimes,

inconsistent. The main solution to this lies in having adequate and guaranteed funding

from the Tourism Promotion Fund (TPF) and Tourism Fund (TF).

iii. The current tourism client is a 'novel, trendy, and liberated traveller.' Tourists have their

lifestyles, tastes and preferences subsequently; both KTB and the industry will need to

continuously monitor trends in the visitor market and work towards reaching tourists at

their point of need.

iv. Health, safety, security, and access (reasonable access) remain among the most

important ingredients for tourism to thrive today.

v. Having staff with the right skills/ capacity is necessary for successful readjustment and

organizational resilience in times of crisis

vi. Domestic marketing has proven to be a panacea for the tourism industry in times of crisis

involving international tourists. This market being one of the core focus of KTB marketing

initiatives, an effective framework for objectively measuring the output from domestic

marketing is required going foMard.
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SECTION C- KTB'S COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

KTB is committed to comply with all statutory requirements. Ouring the year, there were no major

non-compliance that may expose KTB to any liabilities.

Below is a list of ongoing or potential cou( cases, the claim and the current case status:

SECTION D . KEY PROJECTS AND INVESTMENT THAT WERE IMPLEMENTED IN FY

2022J23

I. CONSUMERCAMPAIGN-REALDEAL(SEPTEMBER.DECEMBER}2022I

The real deal campaign creative idea was crafted on authentic travel experiences that can only

be found in Kenya while showcasing the diverse offering ranging from the traditional

(beach/safari) to modern and innovative experiences (sustalnable/signature) throughout the year.

The campaign was executed on varied promotional channels, Over{he-top (OTT) which entails

(Zees & Disney + Hotstar), Digital Billboards and ln-theatre display. The campaign had Kenya

Airways as the airline partner with Thomas Cook, SOTC, Yatra, Ease my trip and Make my trip in

two key focus cities with high outbound numbers Mumbai and Delhi.

CASE CASE

NO.

PLACE CLAIM

FOR:

AiIOUNT.

KSHS

STATUS

1 Council of

Golernors -vs-
KTB & Others

Petition

No. 278

ot 2017

Constitutional

& Human

Rights Division

- NBI

Court to

declare

certain

matters

relating to

tourism as

devolved

N/A Matter rs awaiting Court

ruling on prelimrnary

objechon filed by the

Respondents on the

JUrisdiction of the Court

to adjudicate on the

dispute.

2 Kenya Tourism

Board-

Appellant

-vs-

Commissioner

ol Domestic

Taxes-

Respondent

lncome

Tax

Appeal

No.

E006 of

2020

High Court at

Nairobi

Commercial &

Admiralty

Division

Appeal

against

decision of

the Tax

Appeals

Tribunal

62,317 ,706 The AG recommended

that payments made by

KTB are subject to tax.

The principal amounts

of KShs 120M was

paid. KTB applied for

full amnesty of interest

and penalties totaling

KShs 62,317,706. The

decision is awaited.
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G

II. TRAVEL ADVISOR FAMILIARZATIO TRIPS: FEBRUARY & iIARCH 2023

l(TB partnered with Kenya Airways to host fifteen (15) travel advisors from the United States

and Canada to a familiarization trip. The advisors consisted of thirteen (13) Americans and

two (2) Canadians each members of key travel trade conso(ia in the United States and

Canada.

ilt. TNTERNATTONAL TOURTSM BOURSE (tTB) 2023

KTB in partnership with forty five (45)

private sector partners participated at

the \,\orld's leading travel trade show

(lTB) that took place from the 7s to gih

of March 2023 at Messe Berlin. The

exhibitions attracls over 180 countries

and some 160,000 travel professionals.

This year the guest country was
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Georgia. Kenya participated with a delegation of 130 representatives with a large majority

drawn from the private sector and Government representation from the Ministry of Tourism,

Wildlife and Heritage, Bomas of Kenya, Tourism Fund and Kenya Utalii College.

KTB 3 CITY.ROADSHOW (JANUARY 3OIX. 31ST & O6TH FEBRUARY 2023I

KTB in partnership with thirteen (13) Kenyan Travel Trade Partners and Kenya Airways

conducted a three (3) city lndia Roadshow. The Roadshow covered Ahmedabad, Bengaluru

and New Delhi. The events took place on January 30rh, 3'l"i and February 6tn 2023. This was

a platform to enhance product knowledge and create direct linkages with local partners. On

the side lines KTB had media round-tables and interactions to build media relation and

strengthen destination visibility with the key media houses.

(
I

V. OUTBOUND TRAVEL MART (OTMt 02No {4rH FEBRUARY 2023

KTB in partnership with the Kenya High

Commission, New Delhi, Kenya Airways (KQ),

Kenya Utalii College and thirteen (13) Kenyan

travel trade partners participated at the Outbound

Travel Mart (OTM) 2023. The event was held at the

Jio World Convention Centre in Mumbai from the

02nd to M'h of February 2023. lt was attended by

more than 1250 exhibitors, 1000 hosted buyers

and at least 30,000 travel trade visrtors including more than 70 travel leaders from the Asia and

Pacific countries (APAC).
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TRAVEL GROUP LUXEMBOURG (TGL} INSPIRATIONS TRADE EDUCATIONAL TOUR

IN PARTNERSHIP WITH AFRICAN QUEST SAFARIS (AQS} - APRIL TO MAY'23

KTB partnered with Africa Ouest Safaris

(AQS) and KLM Royal Dutch Airlines to host

a 'Green Season' educational tour for eleven

(1 1) of TGL'S certified Magical Kenya Travel

Specialists (MKTS). The educational visit

was aimed at pitching new business

opportunity for Kenya. The educational tour

(TGL) took place from April 28th to May 3rd,

2023, featured Ol Pejeta Conservancy, Lake Nakuru National Park and Maasai

JOINT PARTNERSHIP CAMPAIGN WITH ONLINE TRAVEL AGENCY (OTA); VOYAGE

PRIVE IN FRANGE

KTB partnered with the online travel agency Voyage Prive to implement a sales conversion

based campaign targeted at promoting Magical Kenya to French travelers looking to book

their next long-haul trip. The c€mpaign shared Magical Kenya inspiration content, tra\el

itineraries and flash sale offers based on the following key pillars, safari, safari & beach,

beach, adventure and nature all of which are part of Kenya's unique selling preposition.
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SOCIAL MEDIA CAMPAIGN - GERMANY, ITALY AND FRANCE

KTB continues to conduct social media campaigns on lnstagram and Facebook in the

following European markets: Germany, ltaly and France. The destination content addresses
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community segments and increases engagement rate through targeted topics tailored for

specific consumer segments. These social media activities seek to position Kenya as a top

travel destination in 2023 among its existing and new audience following and establish

"Magical Kenya" as an approachable brand on social platforms.

4,1

Iti'

BRITISH HIGH COMMISSION ROUNDTABLE EVENT - MAGICAL KENYA - ENABLING

THE TOURISM SECTOR TO THRIVE IN KENYA

tx.

x

KTB participated at the

"Magical Kenya"

Enabling the tourism

sector to thrive in Kenya

event, coordinated by the

Bratish Chamber of

Commerce in Kenya.

The tourism stakeholder

event took place on May

4th at the Vipingo Ridge

and was aimed at

providing an opportunity
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for Kenya's tourism sector to address topics that are essential and strategically tied to the

UK's and Kenya's trade, export, and economic growth and serve as the basis for longer-term

engagement between British and Kenyan tourism priorities, relationships, and partnerships.

JOINT MARKETING CAMPAIGNS WITH TOUR OPERATORS IN UNITED KINGDOM

KTB implemented a series of joint marketing campaigns in collaboration with the following

three (3) tour operator partners; Mahlatini, Africa Exclusive and Aadvark. The campaigns

targeted the end consumer and featured destination advertising content on their preferred

offline and online channels. The tour operators included Kenya package offers that sort to

increase sales bookings for Kenya.

DOMESTIC MARKETING PROMOTION (TOURISM PROMOTION FUND PROJECT)

The TPF supported KTB in the tourism recovery efforts by funding the Domestic Marketing

Promotion. Management embarked on a

six-month domestic tourism campaign

dubbed, 'You Deserve a Holiday" to

support the industry by rallying Kenyans

to travel to throughout Kenya. The

initiative involved a partnership with KTB

and 21 travel trade partners.

KTB held 4 corporate engagements that

generated a database of 250 leads. ln

addition to management implemented activations around golf at Sigona Golf Club where KTB

and its partners were able to engage over 280 golfers, club members and invited guests.
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Management also conducted a consumer promotions campaign on key media channels (Tv

& radio) which commenced on 1srh March to 7n April 2023 and supported on digital platforms

which the media partners extended to KTB as value adds.

XIII. MAGICAL KENYA REAL DEAL EMAIL CAMPAIGN

ln May 2023, KTB in partnership with Kenya Airways launched a sales drive campaign titled the

Magical Kenya Real Deal Sales Drive. The sales drive campaign targeted the Magical Kenya

Travel Specialists based in the United States. There are currently a totial one thousand five

hundred and eightyjour (1,584) Magical Kenya Travel Specialists in the US. Kenya AiMays

supported the campaign by offering special discounted air fares to Kenya which the travel

advisors can access using a special promo code titled "Real Deal." The sales drive will run 3

months from 15rh May to 1 sth August 2023.

XIV. OESTINATION TIARKETING SERIES COUNTY EDITION - PHASE I

The Destination Marketing Series is a concept aimed at providing an opportunity for in-depth

engagement with Counties, experience owners and other partners with the objective of

facilitating the development of exceptional Kenyan travel experiences. The County Edition Phase

I was undertaken in between 1gth & 27th June 2023 wtlere l(TB held sessions with 19 Counties

in Central, North Rift and Kenya Coast Regions.
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xv. MIDDLE EAST FAMTLTAR|ZAT|ON TR|P (MAy 2023)

KTB ln partnership with Kenya Airways hosted fourteen (14) key tour operators drawn from the

Middle East to explore the Kenyan coast in the wake of the direct flight from Dubai-Mombasa

with the aim of packaging Kenya as Bush and beach besides the other products. The activity was

aimed at increasing awareness on Kenya, providing primary positive media coverage on the

destination and also support the planned marketing activities. The key areas covered are

Amboseli, Tsavo West and East National Parks, Taita, Malindi, Watamu, Mombasa and Diani.

XV. UNITEO NATIONS HABITAT ASSEMBLY (JUNE 2023)

The second session of the United

Nations Habitat Assembly wes held

from 5u to 9rh June 2023 in Nairobi,

Kenya. The theme of the session

was "A sustainable urban future

through inclusive and effective

multilateralism: achieving the

Sustainable Development Goals in

times of global crises." KTB

participated at the conference to

interface wth the participants and facilitate information/guidance on visitation within and outside

Nairobi city. Conferences provide an opportunity for the combination of both business and leisure

and thus providing a platform for KTB to market the destination to the conference attendees.

xvt. THE KtP KETNO CLASSTC (MAY 2023)

The fourth edition of Kip Keino Classic took place in Kasarani on 'l3th May 2023 The event

provided an opportunity for Kenya to highlqht her prowess in Athletrcs KTB leveraged the

opportunaty to strengthen the Magical Kenya brand visibility through. branding at the event venue

and engaging athletes in a familianzation trip to Nairobi National Park (this was an opportun(y to

get destination endorsements)
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xvll. I[AAsAl INAUGURAL CULTURAL FESTTVAL (JUNE 2023)

1

The Narok County Peace Association in

Collaboration with State Department of

Culture and Heritage held the 1d Maasai

Cultural Festival days on th and 10h June

2023 at Sekenani gate in Maasai Mara.

The festival is one way of sustaining and

cementing cultural practices and

preservation of culture that has become

one of the key experiences attracting

tourists besides beach and safari.

xvil. woRLD RALLY CHAMPTONSHTP (JUNE 2023)

Kenya continues to build its destination brand through global sporting events such as WRC. KTB

leveraged on this opportunity to highlight what Kenya has to offer as well as promote domestic

and regional tourism. KTB leveraged the event to highlight the destination's lourism experiences

by facilitating interviews with key regional and global talking heads.
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xtx. THE MAGTCAL KENYA TRAVEL EXPO (OCTOBER 2022)

IE'''

JAMBOJEI

hosted buyers, educative seminar tracks and networking sessions

XX. THE NEW YORK MARATHON (NOVEMBER 2022}

The 12th edition of the Magical Kenya

Travel Expo took place from sth - 7th

October 2022 at the Bomas of Kenya in

Nairobi. Hosted buyers were drawn from

over 25 source markets across the globe in

the last decade MKTE has set itself apart

as a show with high qualaty vetted buyers,

effective matchmaking tools, prescheduled

and guaranteed B2B meetings coupled

with experiential famillarization trips for the

h
I

r

The Abbot marathons are held annually in three continents namely Asia, Europe and the

Americas. There were more than 180 000 runners who compete in srx of the world's most

prestgrous marathons. KTB participated at the TCS New York City Marathon Expo in New York

City and engaged Eliud Kipchoge in side events to promote Magical Kenya and raise the profile

of the destination.
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XXI. THE INTERNATIONAL TENNIS FEOERATION (ITF) WOMEN'S WORLD TENNIS

TOURNAMENT (NOVEMBER 2022)

ln line with promoting Kenya as a sporting

destination, Kenya Tourism Board hosted

ITF women wodd tennis players on a tour

to the Nairobi National Park as part of

showcasing the safari experience.

Sponsorship of the Women's tennis event

is part of the promotion of sports tourism

and more importantly leveraging Kenya's

professional tennis champion and winner of

the Grand Slam Ms. Angela Okutoi who

participated and came second.

g

XXII. THE LAMU CULTURAL FESTIVAL

toUllhuqo

KTB was among participating institutions an the cultural festival held lrom 24th to 27rh November

2022. Kf B also supported publicity to UNESCO'S Covid-19 crisis response programme aimed at

supporting tourism recovery around World Heritage Sites. The Lamu Cultural festival is one of

the key events that has propelled tourism business in Lamu.
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PLANNED MARKETING ACTIVITIES FY 2023124

'1. Magical Kenya Travel Expo (MKTE)

2. East Africa Regional Travel Expo (EARTE)

3. Joint Marketing Campaigns in Europe, lndia, China, and North America

4. Sales Calls across markets - meeting trade partners and embassies

5. Trade Forums - APTA & USTOA

6. Magical Kenya Global Roadshow - West Africa, China, Europe & North America

7. Destination Marketing Series - County Edition

8. Digital Marketing - UNESCO Project and elearning Program

9. MKSE Program

'10. Product lnfo review and Updates: MICE, Cruise

11. Capacity building - destination trainings and eLearning

12. World Tourism Day/ Kenya Week Celebrations

13. AirlinePartnerships

14. Travel Trade Outreach Program

1 5. Website Development

16. The East African Regional Travel & Magical Kenya Expo

17. Lamu Cultural Festival

18. Rusinga Cultural Festival

19. Maralal Camel Derby

20. StakeholderEngagementSessions

21. World Rally Championships

22. Magical Kenya Ladies Open (MKLO)

23. Magical Kenya Open (MKO)

24. Social Media Activations around the Abbot Marathons

25. Themed Media Familiarization Trips

26. Kenya @60 Celebrations

These programs will be funded from grants from the Government, Tourism Fund, Tourism

Promotion Fund and A-l-4.

KTB continues to play its part towards promoting and implementing best practice in conservation

and sustiainable tourism through different initiatives.

lnvostment decisions

Where KTB finds itself with funds in its Bank Accounts not required for immediate operating

needs, the surplus funds shall be placed invested in line with National Treasury Circular No. 4/

2017, no investment were done during the year. lnterest income was earned on current account

balances at the rates negotiated with the bank.
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SECTION F. MAJOR RISKS FACING KTB

KTB has the responsibility of identifying internal risk exposures and developing measures to

mitigate against the identified risks. KTB reviews and monitors the development and

implementation of systems of internal controls. KTB ensures that it has gained an understanding

of these risks and mitigates them by implementing sound internal controls and risk management

practices.

Consequently, fiB developed a Risk Management Framework, which identifies the risks and

prescribes measures for the management of the identified risks. KTB recognizes that information

technology forms an integral part of the risk management process and has developed a business

continuity plan and disaster preparedness plan among other ICT policies.

During the year, the Board reviewed the internal controls, policies and procedures and was

satisfied that appropriate controls and procedures were in place. The Board has delegated the

day to day management of risks to management through systems and processes carried out on

a day to day basis.
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RISKS UKEUHOOD/

PROBABILITY

RISK

IMPACT

MITIGATION STRATEGIES

Tourism products and experiences do not

respond to the dynamic needs of

travellers.

Medium High Develop a Tourism experience system that provide authentic

and exceptional travel experiences.

Capacity building for the trade on producuexperience

packaging.

Missing out on increasing number of

travellers who are on the digital platforms

Low High Recruitment of staff, acquisition of digital marketing tools and

training of the marketing team on the usage of these tools

Damage to the destination brand due to

negative publicity.

High High Have strategic media engagement and image building

strategy

Real or perceived threats to tourist security High High . Enhance partnership with security agencies

. Proactive crises management.

. Active peace messaging by local and global PR agency

lnetfective marketing and public relations

programs

Low Medium lmplementation of marketing and PR activities aligned to

consumer needs

Reduced brand equity Low Medium . Develop strong partnerships with media and trade.

. Communicate the diversity of Kenya's tourism offering

Lack of growth of Kenya sales amongst

the trade in the key source markets

Low Medium lmproved market intelligence and use of digital analytics to

counter competition

Lack of awareness on destination Kenya

amongst the key trade in the source

markets

Medium High Capacity building programs for the trade in the source

markets

Develop and implement an online ce ification programs to

recruit and equip Kenya specialists.

Lack of adequate demand for Kenya Medium Medium Develop and implement Joint marketing activities to drive
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RISKS LIKELIHOOD/

PROBABILITY

RISK

ITIPACT

UITIGATION STRATEGIES

demand for Kenya and conversions

lnadequate engagement of tourism

stakeholders in destination marketing

Low Medium Develop platforms for engagement with the trade (industry

microsite, briefing, e-newsletter, vtebinars on specific topics,

educational and training efforts)

Engage with other stakeholder on Strategic Partnerships
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SECTION G. MATERIAL ARREARS IN STATUTORY/ FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS

ln 2016117, KRA undertook an assessment of KTB operations covering the period July 2012 to

October 2016 and thereafter raised a tax assessment of KSh. 182,568,010 relating to withholding

tax on fees paid to the Market Development Representatives (MDRs).

KTB raised an objection to the assessment on the grounds that KRA'S assessment was based

on a misapprehension of the nature of KTB'S activities and a misinterpretation of the lncome Tax

Act. Accordingly, KTB filed an appeal at the Tax Appeals Tnbunal (TAT) with a view to obtaining

a legal interpretation of the applicable statute and quashing of the tax assessment.

ln its ruling, the Tribunal on 18rh December 2019 disagreed with KRA's argument that the income

from the marketing activity of KTB could be attributed to KTB even though received by the

Govemment. Despite this, the TAT ruled in favour of KRA in the appeal filed by KTB.

KTB, being dissatisfied with the decision of the Tax Appeals Tribunal filed an appeal to the High

Court of Kenya after due consultation with the Attorney General's office. The purpose of the

appeal is to seek the Court's interpretation of the applicable law. At the same time, KTB

commenced alternative dispute resolution (ADR) proceedings with KRA in line with recent

circulars that directed Government agencies to withdraw court cases and use mediation

frameworks facilitated by the AG's office.

The mediation process took place in April 2022. Inercaft.'l. in July 2022, the Attorney General

gave in his recommendation stated that payments made by KTB to MDRS are subject to taxation

and that KTB is under obligation to withhold and remit the said taxes to KRA. KTB paid the total

principal tax of KShs 120M in July 2022. KTB applied for full amnesty of interest and penalties

totaling KShs 62,317,706; the decision is awaited.

Management provided for the full amount in FY 2019120

SECTION H- KTB'S FINANCIAL PROBITY & SERIOUS GOVERNANCE ISSUES

Strong and effective corporate governance is integral to the KTB'S long-term success and is

essential in delivering t(TB's overall strategy. The various board committees continue to serve a

vital tool for the discharge of the Board's functions.

KTB Board and management ensure flnancial probity and there have been no serious

governance issues during the period.
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IX. ENVIRONMENTALANDSUSTAINABILITYREPORTING

KTB exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force behind everythang we do. lt's

what guides us to deliver our strategy, which is founded on six (6) pillars: putting the

customer/Citizen first, delivering relevant goods and services, and improving operational

excellence. Below is an outline of the organisation's policies and activities that promote

sustainability.

1. Sustainability strategy and profile

Crisis reveal the underbelly of any sector and the economy in general. Covid-19 pandemic is no

different. lt has already caused devastating impacts on the tourism sector worldwide and

revealed the weaknesses in the sector in terms of business models, competitive positioning,

product development and its dependence on other sectors ofthe economy such as transport and

health. Sustainability therefore was once again brought into the front and center of all

conversations at local and global levels with regards to restart and gradual recovery of the

sector

Nature (inclusive of wildlife, landscapes and seascapes etc) and Culture are Kenya's base

resources for tourism and their preservation is key in ensuring sustainabilaty of the sector.

Currently over 7jYo tourism in Kenya and in sub-Saharan Africa is dependent on wildlife. For this

reason, Sustainability is a key consideration in tourism destination development, management

and marketing. Sustainability strives to ensure a delicate balance between people, planet and

profits. To facilitate this, KTB has put in place a Sustainability Committee that interfaces with

product owners and partners to drive the sustainability agenda at both organizational and

destination levels.

KTB is also a member of Ecotourism Kenya, an association that champions responsible tourism

in Kenya through an eco-rating scheme, annual eco-warrior awards, annual ecotourism forums

and projects focused on capacity building, and certification of destinations and tour operations

among others. ln its marketing efforts, sustainability is a key theme to address the consumer

trends and demand for sustainable products/experiences/destinations especially among the

millennials who form two thirds of the world's population.

KTB developed the Kenya Tourism Sustainability Report focusing destination efforts towards

addressing the Sustainable development goals 8, 11 and 12 as well as goal l7 where KTB works

with various partners in sustainability poects such as Kenya Wildlife Service, Friends of Karura

Forest, and Ecotourism Kenya among others. KTB has collaborated like-minded partners such

KWS to host the Annual Magical Kenya Tembo Naming Festival under the banner

#savethetembo.

a
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Adoption of market and product diversification strategies have also helped in sustaining the

sector especially during the low season focusing on domestic and regional markets, in addition,

to the international markets. On the product front, diversifying the offering beyond the traditional

beach and safari; moving beyond the popular circuits to new and less known circuits hence

ensuring tourism benefits are spread across the country and throughout the year. This meets the

basic requirement of sustainability, which is to meet the needs of current and future generations

but also beneflt everyone across the country. The Magical Kenya Signature Experiences

program (in its 3d Phase) has incorporated sustainability in its criteria thereby ensuring a

Signature Collection of unique and diverse Kenyan travel experiences that are responsible with

environment and communities.

Capacity building amongst statf and trade partners through the various forums has played a key

role in enhancing appreciation for sustainability and mentoring the youth through partners such

as Kenya Utalii College, Global Tourism Resilience and Crisis Management Centre/ Kenyatta

University. Most recent we collaborated with Green Tour Kenya for a sustainable destination

Branding program among others.

2. EnvironmentalPerformance

Environmental Sustainability is no longer a distant phenomenon but a reality that destinations

must face. lssues such as Climate Change, Bulging Populations, Diminishing Resources,

Tenorism, Seasonality of demand as well as Changing Consumer Trends dictate that

destinations must adopt to sustainability practises across the tourism value chain. Kenyan

Government has come up with a raft of measures geared towards environmental conseNation

such as the lsBillion Tree Planting Campaign launched by His Excellency The Presadent of The

Republic of Kenya, existence of relevant institutions established to manage environmental

matters, requirements on green building and projects such as wind farms, solar panels and

geothermal power go a long way in conserving the environment.

KTB has been part of the Single Use Plastic Ban campaign and implementation of the Cop26

declarations through ban of plastic cups in the office and being in the fore front on tree planting

initiatives and promotion of tourism that feature enriching experiences in pristine environments

such as Kereita Forest which is part of our signature experiences collection.

3. Employee welfare

The HR Policy and procedure manual and the Gender Mainstreaming Policy guides on the hiring

process and affirms on matters pertaining to gender ratio. Staff and other stakeholders' inputs/

engagements (NGEC, NACADA, NCPWD and NACC) and the Board of Directors are involved in

improving the Policies when reviewed from time to time. The Gender Based Violence (GBV) in

the workplace policy whose overall goal is to attain elimination of GBV and sexual harassment at
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the workplace, and is aligned with the provisions and principles of the National Policy on Gender

and Development, 2019.

Skills are improved through training, coaching and mentorlng. Reward and Sanctions policy in

place to guide on the reward system. KTB also has road safety and compliance policy.

4 Market place practices

Responsible competition practice,

KTB adheres to the requirements of the PPADA 2015 and the PPADR 2020, which

stipulates kansparency and fairness in all procurement activities. All participants involved

in the procurement processes are treated equally in terms of information submission and

responses to queries.

a)

KTB ensures transparency through the publishing and advertisement its tenders in the

Public procurement information po(al as well as in the organization's website. This

ensures fair competition among potential suppliers.

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations

Kenya Tourism Board undertakes its procurement processes in line with the requirements

of the PPADA 2015 and PPADR 2020. Award of tenders is based on fairness,

transparency and objectivity as per the requirements of the Act. KTB maintains open

communication line with all its suppliers via dedicated email and telephone. KTB also has

set credit terms that is disclosed to all bidders before award of contracts and the same is

duly maintained. KTB honours contracts and ensules that payments are made within the

agreed timelines subject to satisfactory delivery of goods and services.

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement+ffortg to maintain ethical marketing

practices

KTB ensures ethical marketing practices by seeking to promote honesty, fairness, and

responsibility in all advertising. This is ensured through using reputable advertising

agencies such as Scanad Advertising, which has a global network, wide range of

reputable clients and a good reputation as an agency. KTB ensures that information In its

marketing about the organization and the destination is correct and verified. KTB also

engages reputable representation companies (Market Development Representatives) an

the source markets to support the implementatron of the global marketing strategy.
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d) Product stewardship- effort8 to safeguard consumer righE and interests

The consumer is at the center of KTB'S initiatives ensuring that the needs and interests of

consumers are considered when designing destination products and experiences. This is

achieved through regular forums held with the produsl owners and private sector

stakeholders to share market intelligence including regular consumer insights. Embracing

sustainability and no plastic ban among other initiatives helps to ensure good stewardship

of Kenya's tourism base resources such as nature and culture.

5. CommunityEngagement

ln its implementation of its sustainability agenda, KTB has undertaken a number of initiatives that

are community engagement related. KTB continues to play its role in impacting the local

Communitaes economically.

During World Desertification Day 2023, KTB purchased indigenous Tree Seedlings from a local

Women Group through recommendation from Kenya Forestry Services. We also purchased Tree

Seedlings from Chapalungu Community Group who have a nursery and work with the local

County in restoration of Chepalungu Forest. KTB sustainability Committee has earmarked to

sponsor a water tank to an identified special School in Kitui County as part of the World

Environmental Day Celebration that was hosted in the County.

The Board has endeavoured to promote inclusivity ensuring youth, women and people with

disability as well as the different tourism regions are involved as either suppllers, partners and

beneficiaries of the various initiatives. Board also works closely with the County Governments

and through the Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife engages with communities and get input in its

strategy.
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X. REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board of the Directors submits their report together with the audited financial statements for

the year ended June 30, 2023 whach show the state of the KTB's affairs.

i. Principalactivities

The principal activity of the Tourism Board continues to be marketing Kenya as a tourist

destination.

Quality Policy

Kenya Tourism Board is committed to supporting and serving the tourist industry through

marketing Kenya's unique physical and non-physical attractions with diligence, dedication and

professionalism for the benetlt of all stakeholders.

ln pursuit of this commitment, quality objectives that have been established and communicated

to all employees are being implemented and monitored.

KTB Employees

KTB employees exhibit the highest levels of integrity and professionalism. ln meeting the service

needs of our customers, our employees "get it right the first time, every time".

Customer Focus

We are a customer driven organization that views every customer contact as an oppo(unity to

add value and enhance our relationship. We listen to our customers, learn and understand their

needs thereby enabling us to anticipate and pro-actively offer attractive solutions.

We continuously strive to otfer the best services for our customers

Communication

We offer open, honest and constructive communic€tion throughout the organization by

supporting healthy debate and personal participation on issues affecting our business. We

communicate with our customers in a fresh and informative way.

Service

We optimize the use of relevant technology to deliver attractive customer solutions, increase

efficiency and minimize cost base.

We offer reliable service delivery channels that provide a comfortable, secure and user-friendly

environment for both customers and employees alike. We constantly seek ways to improve the

delivery of service to our customers.
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ii. Rosults

The results of the Kenya Tourism Board for the year ended June 30, 2023 are set out on page 1-

45.

lii. Diroctors

The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on page lX to XIV

The directors were appointed durlng the year with effect from 10h March 2023.

Iv. Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Kenya Tourism Board in

accordance with Article 229 ol lhe Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act, 2015.

By Order of the Board

Allan Njoroge Dale:07.02.2024
co
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XI, STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 14 of the State

Corporations Act and The Tourism Act No.28 of 201 1 Section 32(4) require the Directors to
prepare financial statements in respect of KTB, which give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs of KTB at the end of the financial year and the operating results of KTB for that year. The

Directors are also required to ensure that KTB keeps proper accounting records, which disclose

with reasonable accuracy the financial position of KTB. The Directors are also responsible for

safeguarding the assets of KTB.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of KTB's financial statements,

which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of KTB for and as at the end of the financial

year ended on June 30,2023. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial

management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the

reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable

accuracy at any time the financial position of the entity; (iii) designing, imptementing and

maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and farr presentation of the financial

statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error

or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the entity, (v) selecting and applying appropriate

accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for KTB's financial statements, which have been prepared

using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and

estimates, in conformity with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in

the manner required by the PFM Acl, 2012 and (the State Corporations Act). The Directors are of

the opinion that KTB'S financial stalements give a true and fair view of the state of KTB'S

transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and of KTB's financial position as at

that date.

The Direclors further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for KTB,

which have been relied upon in the preparation of KTB's financial statements as well as the

adequacy of the systems of intemal financial control.

I

( hrrfi I



7 7-

KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

STATEifENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES- Continued

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that KTB will not remain a going

concem for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

KTB's fi m were arp the Board on 28.09.2023 and signed on its behatf

by:

.l
lll\t -*'

)-

ts c

IRP RSO o
John Chirchir

AG. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Telephone: +254-(2o) l2r4ooo
E-mail: info(aoaskenva.so.ke

]stte, *i*. J"gtenyI.go.te

REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

l: hutL.i ! .1( t.t,untuhiIitt

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box Joo84'oo1oo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON KENYA TOURISM BOARD FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

A. Report on the Financial Statements that consider whether the financial statements are
fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards, and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines, and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent, and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management, and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient, and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management, and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 ol lhe Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Acl,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the reporl of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Tourism Board set out
on pages 1 to 52, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2023, and the statement offinancial performance, statement of changes in net

Report ofthe Auditor-(jenerql on Kenya Tourism Board for thet'eor ended 30June,2023



assets, statement of cash flows and statement of budget and actual amounts for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of lhe Constitution of Kenya
and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Kenya Tourism Board as at 30 June, 2023, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector
Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Tourism Act, 2011 and the
Public Finance Management Acl, 2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya Tourism Board Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audit of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ot the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Marketing Costs on Special Prolects

The statement of financial performance reflects marketing costs of Kshs.537,506,796 as
disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements. lncluded in this amount is
Kshs.12,763,321 in respect of special projects. However, the following anomalies were
noted: -

The Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and Heritage requested the
Management of Kenya Tourism Board (KTB) to pay two (2) suppliers

o
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Kshs.6,222,445 for provision of one (1) business class return ticket for
Kshs.1 ,595,745 and four (4) economy class return air tickets for Kshs.4,626,700
from Nairobi to Punto Cana, Dominica Republic. The request was dated
9 June, 2023 and the journey took place from 15 to 21 May, 2023. However, the
payment of Kshs.6,222,445 was not supported by request for quotations, LSO,
evaluation report and certificate of professional opinion;

On 30 June, 2023, the Principal Secretary State Department for Tourism requested
KTB to pay two (2) suppliers Kshs.2,179,235 for one (1) business class return
ticket of Kshs.999,065 and three (3) economy class return tickets of
Kshs.1,'180,170from Nairobi to Kingston (Jamaica). However, the return air tickets
were not supported by request for quotations, evaluation report, LSO and
certificate of professional opinion; and

Procurement records as outlined by Section 68 of the Public Procurement and
Asset Disposal Act, 2015 were not provided for audit review.

ln the circumstances, value for money for the expenditure of Kshs.8,401,680 could not
be confirmed and Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govem them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
reporl, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Composition of Board Members

Review of the Board composition revealed that out of five (5) members whose
appointment were gazetted by the Cabinet Secretary (Gazette Notice No. 2886), none
was from a registered national tourism association as required by Section 32(1)(fXi) of
the Tourism Act, 20'l 1.

ln the circumstances, the Board was not properly constituted to provide adequate
guidance on tourism matters.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Tourism Boardfor the year ended 30June,2023
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The audit was conducted in accordance with lSSAls 2315 and 2330. The standards
require that lplan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Board's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Board or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Board's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenyq Tourism Boardfor the year ended 30June,2023

4



ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(Q of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in

which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

r Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Board's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Board to cease to continue
to sustain its services.

Report ofthe Auditor-Generql on Kenya Tourism Boardfor the year ended 30 June,2023
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Board to express an opinion on the financial statements.

o Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other mafters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA , CBS
AUDITOR GENERAL

Nairobi

25March,2024

- I\
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

XIII. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
lndustry contributions, Strategic
Partnerships
Trarsfer from Government Grants & other
Agencies

Revenue from exchange transactions
Public Contributions & Donations

Other income

Total revenue
Expenses
Marketing Costs
Employee costs
Remuneration of Board
Depreciation and amorlization expense
Repairs and maintenance
General expenses
Finance costs

Total exp€nses
Other gains/(losses)
Net Gain on sale of assets

130,802,907 23,384,359

687 499 124 1 121 819 85S

818,302,031 1,145,204,218

5,951,377

18 501 605 33,687 655

Notes

11

12

13 (a)

13(b)

2023
KShs

2022
KShs

24,452,982 33,6
842,755,O13't,178.891 ,873

14
15
16
17
18
19
20

537,506,796
242,285,227

15,775,366
9,344,991
2,633,882

63,404,736

897,806,156
268,074,806

7,200,153
16,220,U2
4,110,393

82,009,343

21

1,141 314 783 696

872,092,311'1,276,20d,588

24,713 91,905

Loss on foreign exchange transactions 22

Deficit for the Year 137,623,1231 1104,2G1

(8,310,537) (7,U3,646)

,456)

The notes set out on pages 8 to 45 torm an integral part of these Financial

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1to 45 were signed o

Di

of
by:

A ng Of,icer (Ag.)

Name: John Chirchir

Director Finance & Admin

Name: Mary Maina

ICPAK ItI/No: 4589

Dale: 7b February 2024

a of ard

Name: Fra Gichaba

ha

me

h

Dale: 76 February 2024
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KENYATOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

XIV. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 45 were signed

by:

A rng fficer(Ag.) Director Finance & Admin

Name: Mary Maina

ICPAK M/No: 4589

Dale:7th February 2024

Name: John Chirchir

of the Bo

n e ard

me: Franc ichaba

2023 2022
Note KShs KShs

Assets
Current assets
Cash and Cash equivalents 23 173,108,405 485,280,038
Prepayments 25 7,696,05'1 7 J7AJO6
Receivables from exchange transactions 26(a) 9,672,588 13,588,410
Receivables f rom non-exchange
transactions 26(b) 23,146,894 70,306,441

lnventories 27 4,856,496 7,254,O77
Total Current Assets 218,480,434 543,607,O72

Non+urrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 28 37,442,852 32,817,551
lntangible assets 29 2,000,637 4,556,952
Total Non- Current Assets 39,843,489 37,374,503

Total Assets 2s8,323,924 620,981,s76

Liabilities
Current lia biliti,es
Trade and other payables from exchange
trarlsactions 30(a) 1 '15,807,303 362,267,971

Payments received in advarrce 30(b) 4,928,O17 4,OO2,342
Provisions 31 32,671,309 42,860,198
Deferred income 32 18,296,821 99,477,958
Total C urrent Liabilitbs 171,703,451 508,608.469

Total liabilitbs 171,703,451 508,608,469
Nel Assets
Accu'n ulated surplus 34 33,398,856 63,676,988
Capital Fund 35 6,997,450 12,131,917
SinkirB Fund 36 22,000,000 20,000,000
Revaluation Reserve 41 24,224,1ffi 16,564,200
Total Net Assets 86,620,472 112,373,105

258,323,9* 17r,8\ptsTotal Net Assets and Lbbilitbs

Dale: 76 February 2024

2lPage

Date: 7m February 2024



KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

XV. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

As at 1st July 202'l

Deficit for ttle period
CapitauDevelopmert grants received durirE
the year
Transfer of depreciatioryamortisation f rom
capital fund to retairEd eamirEs
RevaltEtion gain
Trarsfer of depreciation on revaluation
Transfers to/f rom accumulated
surplLE/(Def icit)
Balance as at 30 June 2022

As at 'lst July 2022

Deficit for the period
CapitayDevelopment grants received durirE
the year
Transfer of depreciatiory'amortisation f rom
capital furd to retained earnirEs
Revaluation gain

Transfer of ammortization on revaluation
Transfers to/f rom accumulated
surplus/(Deficit)
Balance as at 30 June 2023

Notes Sinking Reserves
Kshs

18,000,000

5J

17
28

2,000,000

5,660,915

13,970,U2 (13,970,M2)

2,250,000

(2.000.000)

20,41,04 9,000,000

9,814,200
(2,250,000)

Accumuhted
Reserveg

Kshs
Capital Fund

KShs

Revaluation
Reserves

Kshs
Total
Kshs

153,718,&2

(104,261,456)

201,159,446

(104,261,456)

s,660,91s

9,814,200

20,000,000 63,676,988 12,131,9',t7 15,s64,200 112,373,10s

20,000,000 63,676,988

(37,623,123)

4,210.524

9,344,991 (9,344,991)

(2,000,000)

12,131,9'.t7 16,564,200

'l 1 ,140,000

(3,480,034)

112,373,'t05

(37,623,1231

4,2',t0,524

1 1,'140,000

(3,480,034)

35

17
28

36 2,000,000
22,000,000

3l'

33.398.856 6,997,450 24,2U,166 86,620,472



KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

XVI. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Notes
2022-2023

Kshs
Cash f,ows from operating activities
Receipts
Exchequer Releases: Govemment grants and
subsidies

Transfer from other government entities- Tourism
Fund

Transfer from other govemment entities- Tourism
Research lnstitde
Transfer from other government entities- Tourism
Promolion Fund

Sale of goods- lndustry Contribution & Strategic
Partnerships

Other ircome

Total receipts

Payments
Marketing Costs
Other Payments

Employee costs
Board Epenses
Repairs and maintenarce
Total payments

Net cash flows fromr(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of PPE and lntangible assets
Proceeds from sale of PPE

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

33 a(i)

12 (a)

12 (al

12 (bl

33 a. (ii)

33 a. (iii)

33 (c)

33 (d)

33 (b)

16

18

33( e)

28t29
21

85,039,143

21,871,260

762,766,237

627,921,080
174,846,029

250, s87,851
14,819,730

2,633,882
1,070,808,573

(308,042,336)

2021-2022
Kshs

5,562,907

31,633,167

1,157,117,615

907,697,925
64,644,963

257,659,755
6,394,819
4,110,393

1,2/m,507,855

(83,390,240)

355,855,834 824.081.541

300,000,000 191,000,000

4,840,000

100,000,000

(4,210,524)

81,226

('1,129,298)

(5,660,915)

100,224

(5,560,691)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net cash flows from ffnancing Activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash & Cash
equivalents l3't2,'t71,6341 {E8,950,931)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 2022 23 485,280,038 574,230,969

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2023 23 173,108,404 $5,280,039

Kenya Tourism Board presents its cash flow statement using the direct method as recommended

in IPSAS 2.

For the purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents includes interest

accrued on bank balances.
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KENYA TOURISN BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TTIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

XVII. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL ATOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OIH JUNE 2023

Pdnted Estimate+

nan23
Adjustttenb

(Over/tlndefl

FinalAdjrstd

BudSe(. Actualon

2l)22023 c.omparable Bris

P#ormance

Difference

Unde(Over) % Utilization Vailances erylanatiom

KShs KShs

Revenue

G0(-Recurent

G0(-Devdogrcnl

Radaing of selices. lndustrial

Contnfutron & Stategc partnership

Tourism Pmrcth Fund

Iorrism Fund

Finarce lncurp & otrc

Mbdheosincmr

0therGranh- UNESCO PR0JECT

Kshs KShs KShs KShs

38,990,m (80m0m) 3m,9s0,m 3m,990,000

50,2C0,m {50,2m0m)

120,000,000 120,0m,m

100,m,000

3m,m,0cr0

130,802,907 (10802904

100,m,m

3m,0ct0,0t0

33,0t30,0m 18,501,605 14,498,3$

9,489,m 9,489,888 9,489,888

Recwentgrantwas rducd I Sls 23M dunng

lm% Supdam(ay 1

Devdopa{ grant wm rdwd to Zero during

0% Suprtmeriay 1

Cmtihrtrons receld hffr in cash and in kind lor lrlagical

Kenya Exp, ITB kdin and 0TI,12023. Ile psftve

gformance was due to more Mrcash spnsonhip

109% dwing tlr year

TPF is yetto disturse te funds to fiB, tn hdptwas

0% approvd m 30fi Jun 208.

1ffi% Tounsm furd dshrsd tr id amount KStr 300ilfiur .

lnBeslednd in tE cufiflt bank accorrh as neptntd

wrh tp krk. Neatve vaialce resdtng frfln b# bffk

56% Mhnces

100,000,000

3{t0,0c0,m

33,000,0c0

0 100% Confrhnrons recerved in cash relates to UNESC0 prqect.

833,190,m 36,A8,8S 863,479,8S 765,7E4{00 103,695,1S 100%

5l l'.r : .

Tohl income



KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEIIENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL ATOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30rH JUNE 2023- Continued

Erpall.oa

Compensatofi ol enployee6

Prlntod Estlm.t6.
N22!2023

Adluatrnonts
(Ov.r/Und.r)

Fin.l Adjulrod
Budgot -

2022t2024
Actual on

comprnblo Baalt

Podornanca
Difteronco

t ndor/(Ovar) % Utlllz.tlon V.rhnccr orpl.n.tlon!

KSh!

The spend is rryilhin expectalbn. savangs due lo stiaf exils
81% and replacenEnts had nol been doie by 30th June 2023

Kahr XSh!

270,054,84E

403.507,017 121,584,083 525.091.100

KSh. KShl KShg

270,054.848 218j44.912 5'1.609.937

41€2v.249 76.656,E51

Negawe perlbrmance was because TPF pao,ect

(Destnatbn PR & digitd co.rrrunicatixt) was not
85% ifiplernefledt Ule funds had not been dbboced by year end.

Finance cost

Renl paid

Remuneration ol Board

oepreciation and anbnizatih expen!

Repahs and maintenance

Otner paymer(s

2.000,000

32,123,599

12,000,000

17.261,76

2,300.000

74.212.830

160.000

(7,383,745)

3,000 000

(7,900,000)

335 000

(8,805450)

2.160.000

25,039.85,r

15,000,000

9,361.706

2,635.000

65,437,380

9,2U,n2

24,710,317

14,8r9,730

9.3,0{,991

2.633,882

63.448,125.56

17,044,n2)

299,537

180,270

16,715

1,118

1 989 254

Varhnce due lo hgh depreaiation of KShs. agatnst lhe filaFr
fo.e8n cunences( USD,GBP & EURO). The variance rs

also erdained by nEre transactions during the FY as vre{ as
426% increase of ercise tax on bank lransactbns

Spend is within the eslinEled cosls. based on reduced rental
99% costs dudng lhal year.

Spend is within the eslirnaled cosls, based on reduced rcntal
99% costs dunng lhat year.

Spend is w(hin the eslimaled co6ls. Lower dep{ecialbn
budgev cost is due to revalued assets, degeciatifi is

1 00% arnortzed agamst the .evaluation reserve.

I 00% Spend rs wnhin the esltfiEled c6ts.
SavirEs lrorn slafl medical insurance pending stafi

97% red&encnts

Maftetng Erpendnure

Total orpand[uaa

Surplur, (Doffcit) fo. th. poriod

813.790.000 100.989.188 9ta.7r9.t 8 790.670,t71 t23,908.3fi 97.4

19.a00.0q, 164.700.0@) {45.300 125.086,677) (m.213,/rAl 97./.

4.210.001

6l r,.r , ,

Caprlal Expenditure 19.400 000 (14 500.000) 4 900 000 689 9S9

Shs 500.000 for purchase ol fumiture was delerred lo FY

86% 2023f24. tE aq,Vactng p(ocess vras ongoirE al yeir end



KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
STATEMENT OF COIUPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDEO

30rH JUNE 2023- Continued

Budget notes

i. Budgot Variances (Performance difference)

The material variances (below 90% underutilization) and over-utilization are explained above

alongside each budget line category.

Changes between original and final budgets

Explanation of changes between original and final budgets are explained above alongside each

budget line category.

Explanations where actuals do not tie to the statement of financial performance due to differences

in accounting basis, the reconciliation is as provided below:

Deficit as per Statement of Financial performance

Add:
Marketing expenses funded from defened income

U N ESCO-Defend F rom FY 202223 lo FY 2024

Conection of a softivare installation cost that had been capitalized

and the conesponding depreciation that had run for one month

Deduct:
Deferred Development Grants- ESP ftom FY 2021122 nel ol
defened income in FY 2022123

Deficit as per Statement of Budget Comparison

|137,623,',t231

89,272,il8
3,538,511

252,U4

(80,527,1s7)

(25,086,577)
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORi'IATION

Kenya Tourism Board is established by and derives its authority and accountability from Tourism

Act No.28 of 201 1, sections 29-39. The entity is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is

domiciled in Kenya. The entity's principal activity is to effectively market Kenya's tourism products.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPAR.ATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the

measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, financial

instruments at fair value and impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts. The

preparation of financial statements in conformity with lnternational Public Sector Accountjng

Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. lt also requires management to

exercise Judgement in the process of applying the KTB'S accounting policies. The areas involving

a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significent

to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 10 of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the

functional and reporting currency of KfB. The financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with the PFM Act, the State Corporations Act and lnternational Public Sector

Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied

to all the years presented.

AOOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30 June 2023

2

3

IPSAS

Financial

lnstruments

41: Applicable: 1't January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and

useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment

of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements wth more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classiflcation and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics of the

asset's cash flows and the oblective for vrhich the asset is

held;

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model

8l



KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30, 2023

that is applicable to all financial instruments subject to

impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens

the hedging anangements in scope of the guidance. The

model develops a strong link between an Entity's risk

management strategies and the accounting treatment for

instruments held as part of the risk management

svale{y...... Not applicablo

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable: 'l'r January 2023

The ob,eclive of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users of the financial

statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial

performance, financial position and cash flows.

Not applicabla

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 41,

Financial

lnstruments

Applicable: 1st January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 41 was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guaranteed contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on

classifying financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual

basis IPSAS which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41

was issued. .. ... ,Vot appllcable

Other

improvements to

IPSAS

Applicable 1d January 2023

. /PSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial lnformation about the General

Government Seclor. Amendments to refer to the latest System of

National Accounts (SNA 2008).

el,



KENYA rOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

,r- New and amended standatds end interprctations iD issue but not yet effecfrve in the year

ended 30 June 2023.

Earty adoption of standards

KTB did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year

/PSAS 39r Employee 8en6fits. Now deletes the term composite

social security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS.

IPSAS 29: Financial instrumonE: Recognltlon and

illeasur€ment Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS

handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 41 which is applicable

from 1d January 2023.

tPsAs 43 Applicable I't Januery 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that

lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that

faithfully represents those transactions. This information gives a basis

for users of financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on

the financial position, financial performance and cashflows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

Not effective, appllcablo from 1'r January 2025

IPSAS 44:

Non- Cunent

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable 1'r January 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to

sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statement of fi nancial performance.

Not effoctive, applicable from f iJanuary 2025

l0 I



KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4.

a)

i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

TranafeB from other govemment entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair

value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the

transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential

related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably.

KTB receives some of its marketing budget from the development grant. The budget vote

"Suslaining new markets and Sitting Booths" is a strategic intervention that was approved by the

National Treasury in 2015 as part of tourism recovery programs. The strateglc intervention was

approved under the development grant. These specific marketing activaties are treated as projects.

For flnancial reporting, the total marketing expenditure including marketing pro.iect expenses are

reported in the Statement of Fanancial Performance.

Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Developmenucapital

grants are recognized in the statement of financial position and realised in the statement of

comprehensive income over the useful life of the assets that have been acquired using such

funds.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactiong

lndustry Contributions

KTB recognizes revenue from industry contributions by reference to the stage of completion of the

exhibition/ event. The stage of completion is measured by reference to whether the event had

been completed.

Where the event has not been implemented, the industry contribution is reported as liabilities

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized wtren the significant risks and rewards of ownership

have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of

revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential

associaled with the transaction will flow to KTB.

lt I



KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENOED JUNE 30,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SUMUARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

lntereat income

lnterest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest

income each period.

Budget information

The original budget for FY 2022123 was approved by the National Assembly on 21812022.

Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in

accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities on 30rh June 2023. fhe
additional appropriations was added to or reduced from the original budget by the entity upon

receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget.

Accordingly, the Board recorded additional appropriations of 109M against budget cuts of KShs

73M on the 2023 budget following the governing body's approval. The net budget increase was

KShs 26 Million.

The entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure

disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using

a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance,

whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were

recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same

basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a

comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of

budget and actual amounts.

ln addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also

made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the

financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of

comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial

performance has been presented under section XVll of these financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

c)

12l
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

o)

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,

the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates

them accordingly.

Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of

the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair

and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is

acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially

measured at its fair value.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis at annual rates to write off the cost of assets

over their estimated useful lives by equal annual instalments at the following rates: -

(l) Motor vehicles 25/o

(ll) Office equipment 12.5o/o

( lll) Furniture 12.5 o/,

(lV) Computers 33.3 Yo

The depreciation charge is prorated in the year of purchase and year of disposal as follows:

The delivery date is considered as the date of acquisition and depreciation in full in the month of

acquisition.

No depreciation is charged in the month the asset is boarded for disposal.

No depreciation is charged on work-in-progress.

Leaeos

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item to the KTB. Operating lease payments are recognized as an

operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

lntangible Assets

KTB'S intangible assets comprise of software that are in use including the SAP accounting system

and the E-HRM system.

lntangible assets acquired separately are initlally recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets

acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following

initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and

accumulated impairment losses. lnternally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized

development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the

period in which the expenditure is incurred.

13 I



KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite. The SAP/ ERP

system shall be classified as indefinite useful life; they are assessed for impairment at each

reporting date.

Amortization is calculated on the straight-line basis at annual rates to write off the cost of assets

over their estimated useful lives by equal annual instalments at the rate of 33.3%.

The amortization charge is prorated in the year of purchase and year of disposal as follows:

. The delivery date is considered as the date of acquisition and amortization in full in the month of

acquisition.

. No amortization is charged in the month the asset is boarded for disposal.

. No amortization is charged on work-in-progress.

Work in Progress on Assets

KTB purchases prope(y plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets for use it its operations.

An asset that is not ready for use (still being developed and/ or not delivered) at the reporting date

is considered as work in progress (WlP). The assets are shown in PPE & Software movement

schedules but are only capitalized on delivery .The WIP assets are recognized at cost; they are

not depreciated or amortized. The depreciation and amortization start on the capitalization date.

sl Research and Devolopment costs

KTB expenses research costs as incuned. Development costs on an individual project are

recognized as intangible assets when the Board caa demonstrate:

i) The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be avallable for use or

sale.

ii) lts intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset.

lii) How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

iv) The availability of resources to complete the asset.

v) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset ls carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amorlization of the asset begins when

development is complete, and the asset is available for use. lt is amortized over the period of

expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment

annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

,

0
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIcIES (Continued)

h) Financial instruments

IPSAS 41 addresses the classiflcation, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and

financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for

financial assets. KTB does not have any hedge relationships and therefore the new hedge

accounting rules have no impact on the Company's financial statements. A financial instrument is

any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity. At initial recognition, the entity measures a financial asset or financial

liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair

value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs that are directly aftributable to the acquisition or

issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

i) Financial aasets

Classification of financial aasets

KTB classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through

net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the Board's

management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset is held

withln a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractuai cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. A

financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is held within the

management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows and

selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus or deficit unless it is

measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unless the Board has made

inevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial

assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair

value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

criteria being met.

tsl
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENOED JUNE 30,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows

lepresent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value

through surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that is

subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in

profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired lnterest income from these financial

assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through net asseb/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial

assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are

measured at fair value through net assety equity. Movements in the carrying amount are taken

through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and

foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognazed an surplus/deficit. lnterest income from

these financial assets is ancluded in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Trads and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An

estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year

end.

Fair value through surplus or deficit
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assety

equity are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity

manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of the

assets would result in a fiair value through surplus or deficit model.

lmpairment

The Board assesses, on a forward{ooking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated with

its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assetvequity. The Board

recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date.

)
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KENYA rOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

iD Financialliabilities

Classification

The entity classifles its liabilities as subsequently measured at amo(ized cosl except for financial

liabilities measured through profit or loss.

i) lnventories

KTB maintains inventories mainly promotional materials for its marketing activities. Other

inventories include printing and stationery materials, office utilities etc.

lnventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is

its fair value at the date of acquisition.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a

nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacemenl

cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or

distribution.

lnventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for ulilization or consumption in the

ordinary course of operations of the Board .

J) Trade and Other payablB from exchange transactions

ln the course of its operations, KTB enters into exchange transactions and events through

purchase of goods, works or seNices. Trade and other payables for KTB arising from exchange

transactions include: trade and other payables and customer deposits.

Recognition of expense and/ or payable:

From the purchase of goods: When significant risks and rewards have been transferred to KTB,

amount of expense can be reliably measured and it is likely that the economic benefits or service

potential associated with the transaction will flow to KTB, and the costs incurred or to be incurred

in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably; then an expense is recognized

r7 
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30,2O2I
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

From the purchase of services: This is recognized in reference to the stage of completion of the

transaction at the reporting date, provided the outcome of the transaction can be estimated

reliably.

The expense is measured at the fair value of the consideration paid or payable. Where the

expense from exchange transaction is not paid for at the reporting date, it is recognised as a

payable from exchange transaction.

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when KTB has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of

a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service

potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

Where KTB expects some or all of a provision to be [elmbursed, for example, under an insurance

contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is

virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial

performance net of any reimbursement.

l) Contingentliabilities

KTB does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in the

notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits or service potential is remote.

m) Nature and Purpose of Reserves

KTB creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. KTB maintains a sinking

reserve, accumulated Reserve, Capatal Fund and Revaluation Reserve.

The Sinking fund reseNe is a fund set aside for future replacement of assets as required in the

State Corporations Act; section 16(1) requires that state corporations shall make provision for the

renewal of depreciating assets by the establishment of sinking funds and for contributions to such

reserve and stabilization funds as may be required. KTB provides for Kshs. 2M annually for this

fund. The amount is provided from the accumulated surplus reserves. The current balance as at

June 2023 is Kshs 22 Million.

KTB also maintains accumulaled reseNe where all surpluses net of deficits from previous year are

accumulated. The fund is also net of any transfers from/ to the accumulated surplus fund.

18 I
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued|

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

KTB maintains capital fund for grants received for the acquirement of assets net transfer of

depreciation/ amortization of the assets that have been acquired using such funds.

Revaluation reserve is maintained where all revaluation increases are credited. The revaluation

reserve ls reduced by subsequent depreciation and impairment losses.

Changes in accounting policies and estimates

KTB recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of changes

in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical.

Employee Benefits

Retirement benefit plans

KTB provides retirement benefits for its employees. Defined contribution plans are post-

employment benefit plans under which an Entity pays fixed contributions into a separate Entity (a

fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does

not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current

and prior periods. The contributlons to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are

charged against income in the year in which they become payable.

Employee Entitlement

The estimated monetary liability for employees accrued annual leave entitlement at the balance

sheet date is recognized as an expense accrual/reversal. Employee entitlements to gratuity are

recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the liability for such

entitlements as a result of services rendered by employees up to the Financial Position date.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the

date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at

the statement of financial position repo(ing date by applying the exchange rate on that date.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the repo(ing of creditors at

rates ditferent from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as

income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

Related Parties

KTB regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exerl control individually or

jointly, or to exercise significant influence over KTB, or vice versa. Members of key management

are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the CEO and senior managers.

r)
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3)

u)

10

r)

Cash and cash equivalontg

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call

and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily

convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various

commercial banks at the end of the financial year.

For the purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents includes interest

accrued on bank balances.

Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

Subsoquent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023.

SIGNIFICANT JUOGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of KTB's financial statements in conformlty with IPSAS requires management to

make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,

expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the

reporting period. However, unce(ainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected

in future periods.

Estimates and asaumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assels and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. KTB based its

assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.

Howevef, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to

market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of KTB. Such changes are reflected

in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.'140
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, KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

potential future use and value from disposal:

. The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by KTB

. The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes

. The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed

. Availability of funding to replace the asset

. Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information

available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note 26 and 32.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to seftle

the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value wtrere the effect is

material.

KTB estimated the following provisions as 30rh June 2023:

. Provision for bad debts based on the recoverability of the amounts. KTB makes provisions for

all receivables outstanding over 365 days where recovery is doubtful.

. Provisions for staff leave balances- estimated based on the basic salaries in line with the

approved terms and conditions of services

. Provision for gratuity for staff on contracts- estimated based on the basic salary in line with the

approved terms and conditions of service

. Provision for audit fees based on uncharged audit fees.
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11. Sale of services
Industry Contributions, Strategic
Parnerships & Donations

lndustry Contribution
Cash Strategic Partnership & Donations
Non-Cash Strategic Partnership &
Donatio ns
Total lndustry Contributions and
Strategic Partnerships

Unconditional grants
Recurrent Grant
Tourism Fund
Tourism Research I nstitute

Conditional granta
Development Grant
Development Grant-ESP
Development Grant-TPF

Total

1 2(b): Grants Reconciliations

**Tran8fena from Government & other
Agenciea FY 2022123

Government Grant in 2022/23
Deferred revenue trcrn 2021122
Deferred Revenue to 2023124
Transfer to Capital Grant
Recognized Revenue

2023

KShs
2022

KShs

2023
KShs

2022
KShs

77,316,629
8,053,771

5,562,907

45,432 507 17 821 452

130,802,907 23,384,359
lndustry contribution relates to industry partner's contributions for the tourism events. The

contribution is both in cash and in kind.

Partnership revenue are sponsorship in kind by strategic partners to participate in joint events for

example co-branded activities and joint marketing campaigns.

12 (a). Transfer from Govemment & other
agencies*'

298,164, 1 90
300,ooo,ooo

277,282,'153
191 ,OOO,OOO

4 440 ooo
598,164,190

11,309,582
78,O25,352

473,',t22,153

126,312,194
507,345,512

15,OOO,OOO

49,334,934
687,499,124

644,697,706
1 ,121 419,459

2023
KShs

2022
KShs

KShs
Recurr6nt

306,990, OOO

(4,61 5,286)
(4,21O ,524)

KShs
Recurrent

247,149,999
32,OO5,O15

(1 ,91 2,861 )

221
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

""Transfers from Govemment & other
Agencles FY 2022123

Govemment Grant in 2022123
Deferred revenue f rorn 2O2Ol21
Deferred revenue from 2o2ol21- ESP
Deferred Revenue lo 2O23124-TPF
Transfer to capital Grant- 2021122
Recognized Revenue

12 (clf RII{SFERS FROil illtl$IRIES &

AGEIICIES

2023

KShs
Development

11,309,582
78,O25,352

2022

KShs
Development

55, OOO, OOO

75,060,244
507,385,512
(85,OOO,OOO)

@.744.O54.\
89,334,934 s48,597,706

l'|am of llr Enttty Sending fi e Gnnt

Minsfy of lounsm & Vltrldlife

Tousm Fmd

Ioursm Research lmtrtute

Tounsm Pmmtron Fund

Amount

Recogn[ed in

thshtementof Arnountdefemd

Financhl underdehmd

Peilomnnce hconr

l(Shs l(Shs

298164,190 84,719,648

300 000 000

Amount Totaltnmhn

Recogn[edin CumntFY

0aplalFund 2022123

KS[s KShs

4,210,524 306 990,000

. 300 000,000

Iotallramlelr

2021t22

KShs

910 979,859

191000,000

4,840,000

100 000 000

TOIAL 598,161,190 8{,719,618 1,210,52{ 606,990,000 
,l,206,819,859

The details of the reconciliation of the GOK grants is shown in 12(b) above
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEITENTS (continued)

13(a). Public Contributions & Donations

Donations transferred to revenue on
conditions being met-UNESCO

Total T ransfers and Sponsorships

Reconciliation Of Public Contributions and

Balance Unspent at Beginning of The Year

Current Year Receipts- UNESCO

Conditions Met - Transferred to Revenue

2023
KShs

2022
KShs

5,951,377

5 951 377

9,489,888

s,951 5t I

Conditions To Be llllet - Remain Liabilities 3,538,511

13(b). Other income

M iscellaneous I ncome-i nterest
M iscellaneous I nco me-other

Total other income 18,501,605 33,687,655

Miscellaneous income (other) consists of tender fees, credit notes/ write backs of creditors' invoices

and provisions write backs.

2023
KShs

10,766,168

7,735,437

2022
KShs

30,766,519

2,921,136
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

I4. TUARKETING RELATED COSTS

United States & Canada

United Kirgdom

China

lndia

Kerrya

Business Development
Special P rojects
Public Relations & Communications
Online Marketirg/ Global Online

campaigns

Erfiibitions & Events
Agercy Management
Customer RelatiorEhip
Managements
Research & Strategy
Tactical M arketing- Gereral

2023
KShs

109,209,942

58,404,O82

1,606,691

12,792,340

78,O25,352

1 1 ,983,'1 95
12,763,321
28,324,383

9,194,412

177,O45,827

18,221 ,304

6,005,737

5,635,132
8,295,078

2022
KShs

109,657,731

150,359,923

1A,123,345

35,936,002

42,970,715

13,808,785
8,307,479

48,885,505

150,748,404

73,436,060

134,643,647

90,823,392

18,336,247
1,768,918

Total-Marketing Related Costs 537,506,796 897,806,156

KTB's core activity is to market Kenya as the preferred destination of choice. Various marketing

activities are implemented in both local, regional and international markets to market the

destination to potential tourists with the ob.iective of increasing tourist arrivals and therefore

tourism revenue to the economy.
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KENYA TOURIST' BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEi'ENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. Employee costs

Employee related costs - salaries and wages

Housirg benefits and allowances

Employee related costs - contributions to
Pensions and NSSF
Gratuity
Staff Group Life Policy

Staff Medical lnsurance (ln & Out Patient)

Group Personal Accident

Employee costs

16. Remuneration of Board lllbmberc

Chairman Honorarium

Sitting Allowances

lnduction & Training

Travel and Accomodation

Medical lnsurance

Board Telephone Expenses

Total

17. Depreciation and amortization expense

Property, plant and equipment
lntangible assets

Total Depreciation and Amortization

18. Repairs and maintenance
Motor Vehicle
Otfice Fumiture and Equipment
Computers
Total repairs and maintenance

42,9U,000 49,190,740

2023
KShs

148,848,016

16,865,630
8,821,630
1 ,763,130

22,556,282
476,540

2022
KShs

163,184,879

17,075j23
15,220,845

1,323,746

21,563,411
516,062

242,285,227 268,074,806

2023
KShs

955,636

4,648,000

1 ,305,210

8,128,262

693,708

44,550

2022
KShs

805,333

2,370,000

393,1 15

2,977,756

653,949

15,775,366 7,200,153

2023
KShs

6,788,676

2022
KShs

13,175,004
2 556 315 3 045,038

9,344,991 16,220,042

907,217
754,966

2,742,8U
484,600
882,989971 699

2,633,882 4,1'10,393
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, KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENOED JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATETUIENTS (continued)

19. General €xpenses
Ar.rdit fees
Bad debts Expense- lndustry Debtors
Staff wetfare
Hiv aids/Positive living
Subscription and Memberships
Staff Training
Recruitment
Merger Implemenrtation Costs
lnsurance for Motor Vehicle, Computers &

Office Equip.
Rent
Telephone, lnternet, Postal & Directories
Printirg & Stationery
Entertainment

Committees, Conferences & Meetings

Local Traveling & Accomodotation for
Product fam trips
Parking
Legal fees & Consuftancies
ICT Software licences/ Support fees & ERP

P rogrammes

Procurement M anagement

Motor vehicle fuel

Tax and statutory charges

Office general expenses

T otal General expenses

2O. Finance Cost

Bank charges

21. Gainl (Loss) on sale of assets
Pro perty, plant and equipment
Total gain on sale of assets

22. Loss on foreign exchange transactions
Forex (Loses)

1,141,314 783,696

2023
KShs

700,ooo

2,719,721
462,632
775,947

1jzglso
1,285,134

915,220
24,740,317

5,'t 56,305
2,458,213
1,493,651

1,738,699

1,650,792
326,990

221,659

12,354,743

710.440

1,149,247

3,376,836

2022
KShs

700,000
202,402

2,515,805
488,696
795,468
274,850
442.358

13,922,944

878,348
23.654.115

5,635,784
2,993,668
1 ,810,089

1.464,459

3,754,467
2,600

989,795

15,373.218

2,324,924

839,510

2,941 ,442

63,404,736 82,OO9,343

1

2023
KShs

2022
KShs

783,696141 ,314

24 713 94 905
24,713 94,905

2023
KShs

8,310,537

2022
KShs

o43 a6

27 I
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KENYA rOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEiIENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENOED JUNE 30,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23. Cash and cash equivabnE

Bank
CaslForFhand and in transit

Accrued lnterest lncome on Current Account

Total cash and cash equivalents

24. DetailGd Analysb of Cash & Cash
Equivalent

Bank and Account Number

a) Cument Accounts
KCB Moi Avenue Branch EURO A/C
1 101689846
KCB Moi Avenue BranctrUSD A/C
1 101660066
KCB Moi Avenue Branch GBP A,/C
1101636912
KCB Moi Avenue Branch KES A/C
1108980457
Sub- Totel

b) Staff lt/lortgage

KCB- Haile Selassie Branch

Sub- Total

Grand Total

25. Prepayment3

Pr€paym6nt8
Total Prepayments

26 (a) Receivabbs from exchange
transactions

Current receivabbs
Exhibition debtors
Otfler deposits/receivables

Less Provbions:
Bad Debt- lndustry
Sub Total- Provisions
Total cunent receivabbs

608,853 1 .639,7 47
173,108,405 48s,280,038

2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

5,172,793 8,837,806

43,838,376

12,965,724

392,A72,A22

1,648,355

7,201,658

133 379 365

147,402,170 458,514,724

25 000 000 25 ooo ooo
25 ooo ooo 25 ooo ooo

172,102,170 483,514t728

2023
KShs

172,402.170

97,381

2022
KShs

4A3,514,727

125,564

2023
KShs

2022
KShs

7 696 051 174 1067
7,696,051 174 l067

2023
KShs

2,732,249

2022
KShs

3,1 1 0,1 57

9 s88 410 13 588 410
12 320 659 16 698 567

2,648,O70 3,1 1 0,1 57
2,64a,O70 3,1 10,157

28 I
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,KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contanued)

Ageing anatysis: ( Receivables from

exchange transactions) 2023

KShs

331,257

11 ,989,401

Under one year

Over 3 years

Total

Urdamyea

Orv3yas
Tdd

% of the Total

3%

9T/,

2022 %oftheTotal

KShs

- \ok

16,698,567 100%

'12,320,659 100% 16,698,567 100%

Reconciliation for lmpairment Allowance of
Receivables from Exchange T ransactions

At the beginning of the year
Additional provisions during the year
Recovered during the year
Written back during the year
At the end of the year

26 (b) Receivables from non exchange
transactions

Current receivablea
Tourism Fund
Ministry of Tourism- Grants
Tourism Research lnstitute
Staff Advances and Perdiem
lmprest

Less Provisions:
Bad Debt- TRI
Provision TF
Bad Debt- Staff
Sub Total- Provisions
Total current recovables

AfiU analysr: ( Reeivah frcm No$

erchngefaraclim)

2023

KShs
3,110,157

454,747

(916,834)

2022

KShs
3,110,157

2,64tJ,O70 3,110,157

2023
KShs

19,A32,499

2022
KShs

4,OOO, OOO

68,698,333
1 , 1 50,638
2,647,8443,287,836

1,518,587 452 291
24 638 922 76 949 107

1 ,150,638
4, OOO,OOO

1,492,024 1 492 o2a
1 492 o2a 6 642 666

23 146 894 70 3()6 44'.l

2023 %ofthTohl

KShs

23,146,894 %ok

1,492,m8 6%

202 %of[leTohl

l(Shs

75457079 $%

1492028 2olo

24,638,92

2el

100% 76,949,107 100%



KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnusd)

Reconciliation for lmpairment Allowance of
Receivables from Non- Exchange
Transactions

At the beginning of the year
Written back during the year
At the end of the year

27. lnventories
Consumable stores

Total lnvontories

2023

KShs
6,642,666

(5,150,638)

2022

KShs

6,642,666

1,492,028 6,642,666

4,856,496 7,254,077

4,856,496 7,254,077
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KENYA TOUR,SN BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATETIENTS (continued)

28(a) PROPERW, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Office Equipment
Computer
Hardware

Fumiture &
Fittinqs Motorvehicle Total

Cost KShs KShB KShs KShs KShs

lst Julv 2021 18,554.89'r 55,961,437 30,5'.18,727 49,509,388 154,*4,42
Additions 290,7 s5 1,584,560 236,000 2.111 .315
Revaluation 2,O15,200 7,799,000 9,814,200
Disposals (944,87O\ (944.870\
As 3oth June 2022 20,860,846 56.601 ,126 38,553,726 49.509,388 165,525,087

Additions 4,210,524 4.210,524
Revaluation 1 1 ,140,000 1 1 , 140,000
Dasposals (728.443\ (728,443\
As 3oth June 2023 20,860.846 60,083.207 38.553,726 60.649.388 180,147,168

Depreciation and impairment

lst July 2021 13,548,466 50,157.539 20.901.056 35,865,023 120,472,O43
Depreciation 1,355,635 4,016,528 1,674,365 6,128,477 13,175,OO4
Disposals (939,551) (939,551)
As At 30 June 2O22 14.904.101 53,234,515 22,575,420 41 ,993,500 132.707,536

Depreciation 1 ,1 58,857 3,267,135 1,596,796 765,888 6,788,676
Revaluation 254,O44 975,986 2,250,000 3,480,034
Disposals (671.930) (671,930)
As At 30 Junc 2023 16.317.006 55,829,720 25,148,202 45,009,388 142,304,316

Net book values
As at 30 June 2O23 4.S3.841 4,253,487 13,405,524 15,640.000 37,442,452
As at 30 June 2022 5,956.746 3,366,611 15.978,306 7.515.888 32,817,55'l
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Valuation

Motor vehicles were valued by Ministry of Roads & Transport- State Department of Roads during the year

on cost basis of valuation. These amounts were adopted on 30rh April 2023. Depreciation will commence

in FY 2023124 in line with the approved policy.

28 (c) Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost

lf the PPE were stated on the historical cost basis the amounts would be as follows:

Cost
Accumuhted
Deprcchtion NBV

KShs KShs KShs

Motor vehicles 60,649,388 45,009,388 15,640,000

Furniture ard Fittinos 38,553,726 25,148,202 13,405,524

Computer Harware 60,083,207 55,829,720 4,253,487

Office Equipment 20,860,846 16,317,006 4,543,U1

Total 180,1'17,168 1r12,304,316 37,U2,852

Property plant and Equipment includes the following assets that are fully depreciated and revalued

Cost or Valuation
Normal Annual

Depreciation

Motor vehicles 20,'140,000 2,250,000

Office Equiptment 2,015,200 2il,048

Furniture & Fittings 7,799,000 97s,986

Total 29,954,200 3,/t80,034
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' KEN\IAIOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)

29. lnhngible assets - Software

Cost

At 30 June 2021

Additions - internal development

At 30 June 2022

Additiors - intennl developmerrt

At 30 June 2023

Amortization and impaiment

At 30 June 202'l

Amortization

At 30 June 2022

Amoflization

At 30 June 2023

Net book values

At 30 June 2023

At 30 June 2022

KShs

42,715,014

3,549,600

46,294,614

46,294,614

38,592,624

3,045,038

41,737,662

2,556,315

4,293,977

2,000,637

4,556,952

33 | r'



KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 (a) T rade and other payables

Trade payables
Accruals
Other payables

Total trade and other payables

Ageing anatpb:(Trade and oher

payabhs)

115,807,303 362,267,97'.1

2023

KShs

41,099,306
158,450

74,549,547

2022

KShs

139,771,047
2,767,317

2't9,729,607

Under one year

1-2 years

2-3 years

0ver 3 years

Tohl

Bahnceas at30lune 2021

Additiorul prwisions raised

Provrsion utilized

Balance as at 30June 2022

Addiliornl provisions raised

Provrsion utilized

Bahme as at 30lune 2023

m23

KShs

34,698 833

3 827 992

7 481 387

69 799 093

% ol he lotal

30%

3%

670

60%

2022 %ofhe Tobl

KShs

256,622,956 71%

35,845,922 100k

7,481,$7 20k

62,317,706 170k

115,807,303 100% 362,267,971 100%

30 (b) Paymenb received in advance

Paymerrts received in advance Exhibrtiom

31. Cunent provisions

Leave Lhbility

fShs

4,929,017 4,002,u2

2023

KShs

4,928,017

2022

KShs

4p02342

Gratuity

KShs

Audittees

6hs

Iotal

ffihs

6,355,887 23,$3,730 2,1m,m0 32,049,517

1,095,530 15,220,845

{4,805,794)

700,000

(1,400,0m)

17,016,375

(5,205,794)

7,45l{ll 34,001,19t 1,400,000 42,860,198

(1,186,264)

8,821,630

(17,124,254)

700,m

(1,400,000)

9,521,630

(19,710,518)

6,265,153 25,7ffi,155

34 I
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KENYA 7OURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2023

32. i )Dethed lncome KSls

2022

KSIE

GoK Granb

Tourism Promotion Fund

Unesm Funds

Total

7,783,662 14,477,9s8

6,974,648 85,000,000

3,538,511

18,296,821 99,477,958

The detferd inome movement is as Iolbws

2023

ii) Defened lncome KShs

Recumnt

Bahnce Bro4ht Fomard

Additiors/ Defened to 2023/24

Tramfer to lncome Statement

Tramfer to Capital Grants

Babrre Canied Forward

33 a. (ii)Entity Own Genented Receipts( A{-A}- lndusty
Conttution & Strhgic Parheships & Sponsorships

Total Receipts

Less: Non Cash sponsorshps

Tohl Cash hflows

2023

KShs

Developnent

99,477,958

2023

KStE

Other granb

Total

99,477,958

8,153,797

(89,334,931)

4,615,286 3,538,511

(89,334,934)

4,615,286 10,143,024 3,538,51't 18,296,821

The deferred income relates to funds transferred from the income statement under government grants to

the deferred income accounts. These grants relate to funds received in the year or accrued at year end

but for which the specific marketing projects had not been implemented and/or were ongoing.

33 e. Revenue lnflows

Descdption 20242023 202112022

KShs KShs

33 a(i) Exchequer Releases:

Total Receipts

Add: Pnor Revenr received

Less: Accrued Revenue mceivable

TohlCagh hflows 355,855,834 824,081,54'l

306,990,000

68,698,333

(r9,832,499)

302,189,999

590,589,875

(68,698,333)

'130,47'1,650

(45,432,507)

23,384,359

(17,821,452)

85,039,143 5,562,907
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KENYA TOURISN BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30, 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

33 a. (iii)Entity Own Generated Receipb(A*A).Other

lncome

Website lrcome

Miscellaneous lncom*interest

Miscelhrnow lncomeothers

Totalother income

Add: Prior Revenue received

Less: Accrued Revenue receivable

Less: Creditors Writeback

Total

Public Contributions & Donations

Uresco Prolect Funds

TotalCash lnfbwe

33 (c)thrteting Cosb

Descilption

Use ofgoods and services

Add. Creditors settled from pnoryear

Add: Payments recerved in advanc+ Efribitiors

less: Prepaid Media Buy

Less:Accrued Costs dunrg tl'n year

Less. Creditors balance at year end

TotalCash Expenseon lhrketing Cmb 627,921,080 907,697,925

202212023

KShs

10,766,168

7,735,437

2021t2022

KShs

30,766,519

2,921J36

,l8,50,l,605
33,687,655

1,639,747

(608,853)

(7,151,1261

1,795,054

(1,639,74i)

(2,209,795)

,l2,381,373
3,l,633,,l67

9,489,888

21,871,260 31,633,167

202?t2023

l(Shs

537,506,796

124,179,8M

4,469,367

(158,450)

(38,076,518)-

2021t2022

KSh

897,806,156

196,087,902

(ffi,n1,28)

(2,767,317)

139,771,046,58
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33 (dl0fier Paymenb

Descfution

Genral Epenses

Direclors remuneration

Finance cost

KRA Tax assessment pnncipal paymerrt

Add: Creditors settled from prior year

Add; Prepyments atend year

Less: Prepayments at Beginning of year

Less: Accrwd Costs during the year

Less: Creditors bahrce at year end

Tohl0fierpaynenb

33 (e). Cash generated from operations

20242023

KShs

55,120 877

955 636

1 141 314

120133,046

177,350,873

7 696,051

(7178,106)

(3,022,789)

2021t2022

KSh

82,009,343

805,333

783,696

86,925,070

7,'178,106

(6,146,595)

(2,586,238)

(17,398,681)

,l74,816,029
67,971,661

2023

KShs

2022

KShs
Delicit for the year before tax 137,623,1231 (104,261,456)

Adiusted for
Depreciation 6,788,676 13,'175,004
Amortisation 2,556,315 3,045,038
Contributio n to impairment allowance 454.747 202,402
Workins capital adjustnents:
(lncrease)/Decrease to Provisions (10,188,889) 10,810,581
(l ncrease)Decrease in Prepayments (s17,945) 62,699,717

(l ncrease)Decrease in invento ry 2,397,581 183,325

(l ncrease)/Decrease in Exchange receivables 3,915,822 531,093,608
(lncrease)/Decrease in Non-exchange
receivables 47,159,546 250,267

(lncrease)/Decrease in interest receivables '1,030,894 155,307
(lncrease)/Decrease in deferred income (81,181,137) (538,500,594)
(lncrease)/Decrease in payables (243,760,498) (62,148,534)
(lncrease)/ Decrease in payments received in
advance 925,674
Net cash flows from operating activ ities (308,042,s36) (83,390,239)
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34. Accumulated Surplus

Balance b/f
Surplus/ (Deficit)
Transfer of depreciation/amortisation f rom
capital fund
Transfers to Sinking Fund

Total Accumulated Surplus

35. Capital Fund

Bahrrce b/f
CapitaUDevelopment grants
Transfer of depreciation/amortisation f rom
capital fund to retained earnirgs

Opening Balance
Sinking Fund Provision
Balance as at 30 June

(s,344,991) (13,970,O42)

2023
KShs

63,676,988
(37,623,123)

9,3114,991
(2,000,000)

2022
KShs

153,718,399
(104,261,456)

16,220,O42
(2,000,000)

33,398.856 63.676,98s

2023
KShs

't2,131,917
4,210,524

2022
KShs

20,441,044
5,660,9't 5

Total Capital Fund 6,997,/150

The amounts transferred to capital fund relates to capital expenditure for year

36. Sinking Fund
2023

KShs
20,000,000

2,000,000
22 000

't2 131 917

2022
KShs

18,000,000
2,000,000

000 20,000,000

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

KTB's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks and effects of

changes in foreign currency. KTB'S overall risk management programme focuses on unpredictability of

changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks

on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. KTB does not hedge any risks and has in place

policies to ensure that credit is only extended to cuslomers with an established credit history.

KTB's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below

i) Credit risk

KTB has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterpa(y will be unable to pay amounts in

full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks, as well as

trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contanued)

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial position,

past experience and other factors. lndividual risk limits are set based on internal or external

assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors.

The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful

receivables, estimated by management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current

economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the entity's

maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained is made

up as fiollows:

Total amount

At 30 Jun€ 2023
Receivablos from
tra nsaclio rE
Receivables from non
transaclion6

Kshs

't2,567,738

24,638.922

Fuly porforming

Kahg

'to,374,414

23,146,894

Pait due

Kshs

lmpalrod

Kahs

Bank bahnces

Total

exchange

exchange

excharEe

exchange

2,193,323

1.492,028

402 170 172 402 170

209,608,83'r 205,923,479 3,685,352

At 30 Juno 2022
Receivables from
tra nsactio ns

Recaivabbs from non
transaclions

Bank balarrces

Total

23,354,599

76,949,107

483,514,727

20.244.442

70,306,44'l

483,514.727

3,110,157

6,642,666

583,818,433 574,065,610 - 9,752,823

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue trading. The

credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible amounts that

the entity has recognised in the financial statements is considered adequate to cover any potentially

irrecoverable amounts.

The board of directors sets KTB'S cledit policies and objectives and lays down parameters within which

the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

KTB requires that customers pay for their participation costs before the events thereby minimizing any risk

of non-payment of industry contributions. KTB also makes provisions for all receivables outslanding over
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

365 days where recovery is doubtful. To avoid further loss, KTB does not allow subsequent engagement

with a debtor until the previous outstanding amount is fully received.

ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with KTB'S directors, who have built an

appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of KTB's short, medium and long-

term funding and llquidity management requirements. KTB manages liquidity risk through continuous

monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by KTB under non-derivative financial liabilities by their

remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the

contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due wrthin 12 months equal their carrying balances, as

the impact of discounting is not significant.

Between l-3 Over 5

Less than 1 month months months Total

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

At 30 June 2023

Trade payables

Provisions

Defened ircome

Total

At 30 June 2022

Trade payables

Provisaons

Defened ircome

Total

(38,245,892)

700.000

18.296.821

(11,1s7,080) 90,s02,278

- 31,971,309

4't,099,306

32,671,309

't8,296,821

(19,249,071) (11,r57,080) 122,473,587 92,067,137

83,435,104

700,000

(380,360)

3,725,708

30,000,000

58,674,303

38,434,489

44,000,000

141 ,729.047

42,860,'t 98

74,000,000

84,135,104 33,345,348 141,108,792 258,589,24

(iii) Market risk

KTB has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the entity on

an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and etfectiveness of its internal accounting and

operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate and foreign exchange

rates which will affect the entity's income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective

of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
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FINANCI,AL RISK MANAGEiIENT (continued)

acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Overall responsibility for managing market risk

rests with the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee.

l(TB's Strategy Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk management policies

(subject to review and approval by Board Audit and Risk Management Committee) and for the day to

day implementation of those policies.

Risk management analysis is done for all major poects (above KShs 'loM) at the onset of the

pro.iects.

There has been no change to KTB's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and

measures the risk.

a) Foreign currency risk

KTB has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of goods and

services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. lnvoices denominated in foreign

currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and conversion at the time of payment is

done using the prevailing exchange rate.

The carrying amount of KTB's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Ksh Ot ror curroncles Total

Kaha Kshs Kshs

At 30 Juno 2023

Flnanchl alsots

Cash

Oebtors

Totrl flnanclal assets
Flnenclal Llabllitle!

Trade and other payabbs

Totel flnanclal liabiliti€g
Net foreign
assou(llabiltty)

158,379,365 14,O22,4O5'172,402,170

33 o66 562 33 o66 562

191,445,927 't1,o22,405 206,464,732

34,A46,206

34,846,206

6,253,100

6,253,100

41,O99,306

/t1,o99,306
curroncy

156,599,721 7,769,705 164,369,426

b) lntereat rate risk

lnterest rate rjsk is the risk that KTB'S financial condition may be adversely affected as a result of

changes in interest rate levels. KTB'S interest rate risk arises from bank deposits and balances. This

exposes KrB
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises mainly from interest rate movements

on the entity's deposits/ bank balances.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with anstitutions that offer

favourable interest rates.

Capital Risk Managem6nt

The objective of the entity's capital risk management is to safeguard KTB'S ability to continue as a

going concern. The entity capital structure comprises of the following funds:

Revaluation reserve
Sinking Fund

Retained earnings
Capital Fund

Total Funds

Less: cash and bank balances
Net debv(excess cash and cash
equivalents)

2()22-2()23

Kalrs

24,224,166
22,OOO,OOO

33,39a,as6
6,997,450

2()21-2()22

Kaha

16,564,200
20, ooo, ooo

63,662,266
12,131 ,917

a6 62() 472 1't 2 354 343

1731O4,4O5 445,2AO, O3A

(4a5.2AO. O3a)(.1 73,104, 405)

Gearlng -2()(J0/o 432"/"

38. Related parties

Nalure of related rtv relationshiDs

KTB regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control individually or

Jointly, or to exercise significant influence over KTB, or vice versa over its operating and financial

decisions. Related parties include directors, management personnel, their associales and close

family members.

Government of Kenya

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Board, holding 100% of KTB'S equity

interest. Other related parties include:

i. The National Government iv. Tourism Promotion Fund

ii. Ministry of Tourism & Wildlife v. County Governments

iii. Tourism Fund vi. Board of Oirectors
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vii. Senior Management

Tranaactions w ith r€lated partios

a) Sab3 to relat€d parties
Total
b) Purchases from related partiea
Rent Paid to govt. agencies (Kenya Reinsurarrce
Corporation & Kenya Airport Arnhority)

Training and conference fees paid to govt. agencies

Others- Advertising, Telephone, Postage

T otal
b) Grants /TranlfeE trom the Government
Grants from National Govt
Grants from Tourism Fund

Grants from Tourism Research lnstitute

Grants from Tourism Promotion Fund
Total

c) Exp€n3es incurred on b€half of relat€d party
Payments of salaries and wages for National Convention
Bureau employees
Total

d) Key management componSation
Directors' emoluments

Compensation to tl€ CEO
Compensation to key management

Total

2022-2t)23
Kshs

2(J21-2022
Kshs

24,740,317
174,200

23,654,115
41 ,400

1 618 214 292 o,45

26 532 731 24947,559

306,990,OOO

300,ooo,ooo
302,149,999
'191,OOO,OOO

4,840,OOO

100 ooo ooo
606.990.000 594 o29 999

3,690,336 1A a6'1 306
3 69() 336 ,t 8,861 ,306

955,636
7,255,550

ao5,333

8,aao,ooo
56 619 438 53 923 714

64 a3() 625 63.6O9,o2r7

Government grants of Kshs 19.832 Million was received on sth July 2023. Ine amount was accrued in

KTB books and reported as due from GOK as at 30th June 2023.

39. ContingentLiabilities

ln 2016117, KRA undertook an assessment of KTB operations covering the period July 2012 to

October 20'16 and thereafter raised a tax assessment of KSh. 182,568,010 relating to withholding tax

on fees paid to the Market Development Representatives (MDRs).

KTB raised an objection to the assessment on the grounds that KRA'S assessment was based on a

misapprehension of the nature of KTB'S activities and a misinterpretation of the lncome Tax Act.

Accordingly, lfiB filed an appeal at the Tax Appeals Tribunal (TAT) with a view to obtaining a legal

interpretation of the applicable statute and quashing of the tax assessment.
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ln its ruling, the Tribunal on 18th December 2019 disagreed with KRA'S argument that the income from

the marketing activity of KTB could be attributed to KTB even though received by the Government.

Despite this, the TAT ruled in favour of KRA in the appeal filed by KTB.

KTB, being dissatisfied with the decision of the Tax Appeals Tribunal filed an appeal to the High Court

of Kenya after due consultation with the Attorney General's office. The purpose of the appeal is to seek

the Court's interpretation of the applicable law. At the same time, KTB commenced alternative dispute

resolution (ADR) proceedings with KRA in line with recent circulars that directed Government agencies

to withdraw court cases and use mediation frameworks facilitated by the AG's office.

The mediation process took place in April 2022.Ihercaftet in July 2022, the Attorney General gave in

his recommendation stated that payments made by KTB to MDRS are subject to taxation and that KTB

is under obligation to withhold and remit the said taxes to KRA. KTB has since paid the total principal

tax of KShs 120M. KTB applied for full amnesty of interest and penalties totaling KShs 62,317,706, the

decision is awaited. Management provided for the full amount in FY 2019120.

39. Contigent Liabilitios

2022-23

KShs

2021-22

KShg
Statuto ry Obligations- WithholdirE tax
assessment

Tota!
62 317,706 182,456,743

62 317 706 142 456 743

The withholding tax assessment liability was provided for in 2019/20

40. Capital Commitments

2022-23

KShs

500,ooo

2021-22

KShs

5,660,915ALrthorized for
Authorized & Contracted for

TOTAL 500,ooo 5,660,915

Capital commitments are commitments to be carried out in the next financial year and are disclosed in

accordance with IPSAS 17. They include capital expenditure that had been aulhorized by the Board but at

the end of the year had not been contracted and/or those already contracted for and ongoing.
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4't. Revaluation Reserve

Balance b/f
Revaluation gain
Transfer of depreciation on revaluation

2023
KShs

16,564,200
1'1,140,000
(3,480,034)

2022
KShs

9,000,000
9,814,200

(2,250,000)

Total Revaluation Reserve 24,224,166 16,564,200

42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period,

43. ULTITf,ATE AND HOLDING ENTITY

The entity is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Govemment Agency under the Ministry

of Tourism, Wildlife & Heritage. lts ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

44. CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (KShs)
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APPENDIX 1: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECO ENDATIONS/OTHER MATTER

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor and

current status updates. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within

which we expect the issues to be resolved.

Reference

No. on the

exemal

audit Report

l33ue / Observations from Auditor

Timeframe:

(Put a date

when you

epect the

issue to be

resolved)

June 2024

Management comments

Focal Point

person to

resolve the

issue

(Name and

designation)

Status:

(Resolved /

Not

Resotved)

Long Outstanding Receivables

As previously reported, the receivables

from exchange transaction includes an

amount of Kshs 4 ,581,775 in relation to

bad debts- industry and KShs

1,723,846 for former statf. ln addition,

a review of evidence of follow up on

the debts and the effort taken to

recover them \,\ere noted not to be

fruitful since only one debtor has paid

despite the entity engaging the

services of a debt collector-

Unresolved

prior year

issueg

KTB engaged Aegis in to collect the amounts

and the company is paid on commission based

on collections. ln 2018/19, collections were made

from KLM Royal Dutch Airlines of Euro 1,500. ln

2019/20, there were no successful recoveries.

As a means of recovering, the amounts ov'/ed by

the Kenya Wildlife Service of KShs 890,884 were

recovered through park fees waivers provided to

KTB by KWS for various marketing activities. The

debt was recovered fully.

DFA/CEO/

BOO

Partly

Resolved
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KTB held discussions with the Director-

Accounting Services-National Treasury

on the request for approval to write off

some of the old debtors amounting to

KShs 5,833,392. This includes amounts

owing from TRl, TF, Kenya Wildlife

Trails and Monaco Tours & Safaris. The

National Treasury advised that the

amounts due from TRI and TF totalling

KShs 5,150,638 be treated as

accounting errors. This has since been

corrected against provisions. The

National Treasury also approved the

write off of the industry creditors

(Monaco Tours & Safaris and Kenya

Wildlife Trail) totalling KShs 682,392.

The official lefter is how€ver still

awaited.

Ex€tafi Balance6

The amount due from ex-staff of Kshs 1,723346

relates to imprest and advances amounts that

were not paid by former staff members. These
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cases vvere forwarded to DCIO and EACC and

have b€en on their follow up since 2007 but

have not been successful.

They v\rere also forwarded to the debt collector

for recovery but was unsuccessful. Management

has not managed to trace these debtors to

ascertain their ability to pay which r,rculd inform

any legal action to be commenced. Further

efforts in regards to debtor tracing are ongoing.

Management will make fresh follow up with

EACC and DCIO and other private investigators

and if not successful, the same will be

recommended for write ofi as per the PFM Act/

Regulations.

We also wish to confirm that management has

strengthened controls relating to staff exits and

all staff fill clearance forms before their terminal

dues are processed.
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Contingent Liability

I draw attention to Note 29 to the

financial statements which discloses a

tax assessment from the Kenya

Revenue Authority (KRA) relating to

the financial yeat 201612017. ln August

20'17 KRA gave a demand notice of

Kshs.187,014,569. Of this amount,

Kshs. 182,568,010 related to

withholding tax on the marketing

development agencies appointed to 
I

represent Kenya Tourism Board in 
I

various markets. Although the Board l

made an appeal on the tax 
i

ln 2016117. KRA undertook an assessment of

KTB operations covering the period July 2012 to

October 2016 and thereafter raised a tax

assessment of KSh. 182,568,010 relating to

withholding tax on fees paid to the Markel

Development Representatives (MDRs).

KTB raised an ob.iection to the assessment on

the grounds that KRA'S assessment was based

on a misapprehension of the nature of KTB'S

activities and a misinterpretation of the lncome

Tax Act. Accordingly, KTB filed an appeal at the

Tax Appeals Tribunal (TAT) wth a view to

obtaining a legal interpretation of the applicable

statute and quashing of the tax assessment.

ln its ruling, the Tribunal on 18th December 2019

disagreed with KRA'S argument that the income

from the marketing activity of KTB could be

attributed to KTB even though received by the

Government. Despite this, the TAT ruled in

favour of KRA in the appeal filed by KTB.

/CEO/ DFA/

cS(Legal)
June 2024

Partly
Other

MetterB
Resolved

assessment, the same was not
I provided for in the financial years

2016t2017, 2017t2018, 2018t2019,

hovt/ever, the amount has been

provided for during the year

2019t2020.

KTB received a copy of an agency

notice by KRA to KTB'S bankers,
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Kenya Commercial Bank (KCB) on 30

I June, 2020 declaring KCB as the payer 
I

' of Kshs.182,456,743. KTB applied to 
I

the High court and was gr.rnted a stay

of the enforcement of the Agency

notice.

KTB, being dissatisfled wrth the decision of the

Tax Appeals Tribunal filed an appeal to the High

Court of Kenya after due consultation with the

Aftorney General's office. The purpose of the

appeal is to seek the Court's interpretation of the

applicable law. At the same time, KTB

commenced alternative dispute resolution (ADR)

proceedings with KRA in line Wth recent circulars

that directed Government agencies to withdraw

court cases and use mediation frameworks

facilitated by the AG's office.

The mediation process took place in Apil 2022.

Thereafter in July 2022, the Aftorney General

gave in his recommendation stated that

payments made by KTB to MDRs are subject to

taxation and that KTB is under obligation to

withhold and remit the said taxes to KRA. KTB

paid the total principal tax of KShs 120M in July

2022.

Finance Act 2023 provides for amnesty of

interest and penalties for organizations and

l
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Financial

Statements

not signed

by

Chairperson

The financial statements lr€re not

signed by the Chairperson of the Board

as required by the Public Sector

Accounting Standards Board Reporting

Template.

ln the circumstance, the management

was an breach of the Public Sector

Accounting Standards Board guideline/

individuals who had paid the full principal amount

by 3f i Decembet 2022. KTB applied for full

amnesty of interest and penalties totalling KShs

62,317 ,706, the decision is awaited.

KTB submitted the draft KTB Annual Report &

Financial Statements for the FY ended June 30,

2022 on 29th September 2022. As at 30th June

2022, thete was no operational Board of

Directors, with the Chairperson term having

ended on 2nd May 2022.

Despite the appointments of a Chairperson and

new directors in July and August 2022, a

directive issued on September 2, 2022 by lhe

Cabinet Secretary of the Ministry of Tourism and

Wildlife stated that all individuals appointed to

agency boards under the ministry must receive

appointment letters from the appointing authority,

sign and return those letters before their

appointment becomes effective, and engage in

board matters accordingly. As a result, it was not

possible to hold a board meeting to discuss and

approve the KTB Annual Report & Financial

CS. MOTW Resolved

'T

I

l

N/A
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KENYATOURISX BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATETENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

AG. CHIEF EXECUTTVE OFFICER

6m September 2023

Statements for the FY ended June 30,2022. ln

the absence of a Boerd of Directors, the drafi

annual report and financial statements v/ere

signed by the PS, Ministry of Tourism & Wildlife.

Th6 accounb wBre audited in January/ February

2023 and llnalized on 7th March 2023; KTB still

did not have an operational BOD during the audit

period and after consultations, the accounts \rlere

signed by Mr. Anthony Muriu, PS, National

Treasury (Alternate). The signed accounts vr/ere

then submitted to and received by the Office of

the Auditor General on April 20th, 2023.

J
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KEI{\IATOURISU BO,fi'T)
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEHENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
APPENDIX II- PROJECTS IHPLETENTEO BY KTB

St tus of Project Complolion

Completion
Total Exponded %ags to

Tobl proioct cost to dab dab
Cumulativo to

Budget 2022-23 d.bPROJECT{GNYA TOURISM BOARD

Ongoing Proiects- Local & lntematioflal

Developing new and sustaining markets

and sitting booths in Tourism Target
'l Markets

Other Capital ltems
1 Purchase of Fumiture, Refurbishment of o
2 Compuler Hard,vare & SoftlaIes

Sourco of
funds:
GohA.l.A, dev.
Parhsrs,
Bonowings

6,424,@0,000 2,774,ffi3,889 43% 0 2,77,1,883,889 GOK

144,020,m0

100,890,000

14'1,261,%7

81,554,124

98o/o

81o/o

GOK

GOK

0

0
14'1,261,987

81,554,124

Totrl Capibl CosU Budget

Source of funds for the capital prcject

Govemment Gl"ntsoevelopmont

244,910,m0 AA1,816,111

6,669,0(x),000 2,997,7m,000

GOK development grant for FY 2022-23 was reducsd to zem during supplementary 1

91o/o

450/.

0 a997,700,000

0 4997,7m,@0 GoK
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KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
APPENDIX III. QUARTERLY STATEiIIENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

STATEMENT OF FINANClAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE PERIOD ENOEO 30.06.2023

Qt-Soptomber 2022

KShs

Q2-Oecembor 2022

KShs

Q3-M.rch 2023 O4June 2023

KSha

Cummulatlve

KShs

Rovenue from non-oxchanga
tranlactlona
Transfer from Goverrnent Grants &
ottEr Agencies
Transfer faom deferred income

Rovenuo from gxchango
tranaactlona
lndustry cor ribulions arld donations

Total r€vgnue

Exponrgs
Ma.keting Cost
Employee costs
RemurEration of Board
Depreciation ard amortization
elqcense
Repairs and mainlerEnce
GerEral e>penses
Finance costs
Total expen3es
(Gain)/ Loss on sale of assets
Loss/ (gain) on foreign excl'Enge
transactions

Total expen3es

179,477,958 217,495,A35 152.497.500 138,O27.431 6A7.499.124

'179.177.954 217..195.435 152.497.5o0 134,027.431 647.499.124

250,OOO 70,340.142 24.',147.993

2.604,525

36.064.732 130,AO2,907

FirEnce income - external irwestments
OttEr income

3.496.699
5.454.45S

2,644.300
(1,433.749)

9.704.041
2,a92.AaO

14,501.605
7,313,950

s.601- s5a 71.594.694 26.756.51A 44.665.693 156.61A.463

149.O79.516 2A9.O90,52a 179.254.O',ta 146,693,524 A4.117.6A6

105.434.705
62.423.552

1.566.729

133,244,622
67.6A2.197

447 143

143.945,393
56.454,314

1 ,407,153

154,394,075
55,321,123
12,354,301

537,506.796
242.245.227

'15.775.3&

2.894.860
1.250.185

13.14O.524
230.196

2.236.342
151 .O24

'13 721 s44

2,164,969
225.290

14,526,312
356.O04

2.O44.8.20
967.382

21.976.353
333.750

9.344,991
2,633,442

63,404,736
221 365 1 141 314

1A7.3aO-79s 217,744,274 219.527 .435 247,39s,ao3 a72,O92.312

('l.3'17.521] 165.440

('r 5.157)

5.'t 53,55'l

(9,ss6)

4.309.067

(24,713)

8.310,537

146-063-271 217.953,71't 22.4.565.429 251,695,314 880,37A.{35

I

Oeflcft for the poriod 3.O16.242

54 1r

71.136-At I (45.411.411t (65.0O1.790) (37.623.123t



I

a

I

KENYA TOURISM BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023
APPENDIX lV: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS- MINISTRY OF TOURISM & WILDLIFE/ STATE

DEPARTMENT OF TOURISM

xritMTRv oF T(xrRtlstt, wrLDtrFC af,D HERllraGt
STATE DCPARTIIETT FOt T(X'RI$I , .

(,FFICE OF T}IE PRIf,CIPAL SECTETARY

ttF.tI' yl.r. rr.... $b..

aff: raoTl^cc"sI 
'/aI2t 

Yto.-Irl(r7) 2r 
','.'[,*,a:B

l.7. Jolrr drcl*
,S. Chat Exec\rt \rc Oahcer
Xa.r},.a Toa.rrsn Eoaad
P O 8ox 30630 . OOlm
u,troat
ll: Cottn a ltff ar Ir?E fltITY ltll ll C Gr lts
Rafcrerre 15 rrr& to !,q, E?r ecl: xlllll lOflwl (l) (2I) d*!d lt }',v,2023
al tE -ot! eats(t.

Tl!& Dcr-t lsrt lb. Tqrilrn 
-c 

E co.*D lrr rra,t tfrtlll b rrE
,atlrrrt r GrrG El':,Grtd l. Lr, fgi,2 3 9 lrr, 2(123 r! crG - i.t--i
hFu.b*rrt[rd&-.

l...r,r-r.: .!.-rGrzarE lzfrg:.1 ,raaltarm.rL
F.Ll-!* ro{i.,n.ao l.

ln a.r ,u.a raart
tt ta.r, Ltr .t
t.oxllErlD
trr

Inq,o_nr
]&.1E rt
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aKENYATOUHSIIBOARD (

AI{NUAL REPORT & FIilANCI/AL STATETENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
APPEI{DIX V. RECORDING OF TRANSFERS FROII OTHER GOVERNTENT ENTITIES

flfr.t 7F TouRlsM FUND

FL R- TFICONF/i/125 VOL.ll (r0O)

Th. Ae. ChL( Ef,.cl, .tf'r. Otltc.r
lo.rya Tgtrt5mEo.rd
P.OBOXaOA300lm

ANOBI

t .ar Slr,

l5n

lr : CCnFIRIATTCTI.OF.nIYER EXT|TY TR ISFERa FoR YE R
*EA*E
Rat trr b mad! to your ld.r datad 11' July 2@3 conc.mang thc
abo\E.

Thb b to @dirm l,l.t th. d.bu[.nsrt rara don. s iollowr:

Enlr AltErri O-Drrt d (lbh.)

,t*zt 20.qxr.(xxr.(x,

a).qxrdx,(x,

8+22 30.000.0@.00

@.i2, to.qro.dD oo

;b-22 so.(xxr.(xx, q,

O--2,2 20,qro,dx, q,

Jrr-23 3(,.000.000 oo

FGzi' 20.@o,qx, q,

t--2! 2o.qxr.qx, qt

Ar.-all !o.@.m.o
a,..t-2t .aO.OO.OOO.6

td s,o,o.o
TtE rd.v.'lt RTeS a !! rtdtG|l -tEhad
Yd,rt Si.rd!,.

t .rrad K. Lrrtlr, lFlS
Ae. Cha-C.E irr. (,atc-

.20.23
t Lf l . ;. r. r r:ilil,l PIoARD

I{E.3ETl/ED

l

)

,.a-z
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